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Mission Statement

PWP is committed to providing safe and reliable 

water and power with superior customer service 

at reasonable rates.

Vision Statement

PWP will be a valued community asset, an 

exceptional employer, a partner in Pasadena’s 

prosperous future, and contribute to the quality 

of life in Pasadena.

FY 2019 Service Data

Received American Public 
Power Association’s prestigious 
Reliable Public Power Provider 
RP3® “Platinum” designation for 
demonstrating outstanding utility 

business practices in the four critical areas of 
reliability, safety, workforce development, 
and system improvement. 

WATER
Service Area Population  172,132  

Service Area Square Miles  26  

Number of Miles of Water Mains  520  

Number of Wells  18  

Number of Reservoirs  14  

Total Reservoir Capacity (gallons)  110,000,000  

Number of Treatment Plants  1  

Number of Booster Stations  19  

Peak Day in Acre Feet (September 2006)  147  

Current Year Peak Day in Acre Feet   120  
(August 9, 2018)

Number of Services 38,114  

Residential Usage  91.1
(gallons-per-capita per day)  

POWER
Service Area Population  146,312 

Service Area Square Miles  23  

Number of Distribution Miles  664  

Number of Sub-transmission Miles  85  

Number of Poles  11,059  

Number of Receiving Stations  3  

Number of Substations  11  

Peak Day in MW (September 2010)  320  

Current Year Peak Day in MW (July 6, 2018)  302  

Number of Services  66,678

Received the Arbor Day 
Foundation’s Treeline USA 
award for power line 
clearance practices for 
the 17th consecutive year.

Received the 2019 Silver 
Stevie® Award from 
the American Business 
Association for the 
Power Up Pasadena – 
Electrifi cation Initiatives

in a Green City marketing campaign 
to promote electric vehicle technology 
in Pasadena. 
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City Council Goals & Objectives
• to maintain fi scal responsibility and stability;
• improve, maintain and enhance public facilities 
 and infrastructure;
• increase conservation and sustainability;
• improve mobility and accessibility throughout 
 the city;
• support and promote the quality of life 
 and local economy;
• and ensure public safety
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We are proud to present the highlights of another successful year at Pasadena Water 
and Power (“PWP”), a department of the City of Pasadena.  PWP has been providing high 
quality utility services at competitive rates for over a century and now serves almost 
67,000 electric customers and over 38,000 water customers.  In Fiscal Year (“FY”) 2019, 
signifi cant milestones were achieved on projects that support the long-term viability of 
the utility including infrastructure improvements, long-term resource and infrastructure 
planning, expanded service off erings, and modernized technology.  Rate actions were 
also taken to support ongoing operations and infrastructure requirements to ensure 
reliable service and the sound fi scal health of both the water and electric systems. 

PWP generated over $278 million in operating revenue during FY 2019 and contributed almost $20 million to support vital municipal services 
including police and fi re, parks, libraries, and other City functions.  Over $42 million was invested in capital improvement projects including 
enhancements to the distribution systems, new vehicles and equipment, technology solutions, and various customer projects.   

PWP also completed the 2018 Power Integrated Resources Plan (“IRP”), a comprehensive guide to ensure the availability of suffi  cient energy 
resources to meet Pasadena’s needs for the next 20 years.  The IRP was developed through an extensive stakeholder working group, and 
with regular public participation.  It is one of the fi rst to be approved in California that is compliant with the newly enacted Senate Bill (“SB”) 
100, which sets an ambitious Renewable Portfolio Standard (“RPS”) target of 60 percent by 2030, and a planning goal of zero carbon by 
2045.  PWP achieved an RPS of 35 percent for Calendar Year (“CY”) 2018, and reduced greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions by over 40 percent 
compared to 1990 levels.  With progress currently exceeding state mandates for GHG reduction and renewable content of energy, PWP is on 
track to achieving the higher targets.  

A focused electric vehicle (“EV”) adoption strategy has started to yield results.  Local ownership has increased signifi cantly and Pasadena 
now exceeds statewide EV registration averages for comparable cities.  Signifi cant progress has also been made to expand EV charging 
infrastructure throughout the city to support growing public demand for charging. The Marengo Charging Plaza, which will include 44 fast 
chargers, is scheduled to be completed in 2020 and will be the largest EV fast charging location in the United States.  Under California’s 
Low Carbon Fuel Standard program, PWP has created a new revenue stream from the sale of credits attributed to EVs in Pasadena which 
is helping to fund local EV rebates and infrastructure expansion. 

 PWP published its 2018 Consumer Confi dence Report on Water Quality, once again demonstrating that the high quality of water in Pasadena 
continues to meet all state and federal mandatory water quality requirements.

Work also continued on the Water System and Resources Plan (“WSRP”), which combines infrastructure and resource planning in one 
comprehensive long-term plan.  The new WSRP, which is scheduled to be completed in FY 2020, will improve management and availability 
of local water supply, prioritize long-term infrastructure requirements, and outline water conservation targets.

Signifi cant progress has also been made in a major cross-departmental eff ort to replace PWP’s Customer Information System (“CIS”).  
Contracts were awarded for a robust cloud-based solution and for project management services.   The new CIS will greatly enhance the 
customer experience, improve fi nancial controls and data management, and support a variety of new technology programs and services 
such as smart grid and rate structures that are more appropriate to PWP customers. The CIS is expected to be fully operational by late 2021.   

PWP also continues to off er a variety of programs, public events, and workshops to inform and engage the public about service off erings and 
technologies that help save energy and water.  Customers received over $4.2 million in rebates, incentives, and no-cost direct installation 
services in FY 2019 which helped reduce cumulative energy use by 17,000 megawatt hours (“MWh”) and per capita water consumption by 
28 percent compared to baseline demand.   PWP also increased its focus on income-qualifi ed customers by providing free, new technologies 
and retrofi ts that help lower their utility bills while helping PWP achieve energy effi  ciency and water conservation targets. 

We are proud of the milestones reached in FY 2019 and look forward to achievements in FY 2020 and beyond.  For every goal that is reached 
and mission that is accomplished, numerous others are initiated in our ongoing pursuit of new and innovative service off erings for Pasadena.  
We sincerely appreciate the leadership of the City Council, the dedication and support of leaders and staff  at PWP and in all City departments, 
and the residents and businesses of Pasadena as we work together to secure the longevity of our landmark utility.  

To Our Community:

Gurcharan S. Bawa Steve Mermell
General Manager,  Pasadena City Manager

Pasadena Water and Power
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The Pasadena Municipal Services Committee 

reviews electric, water, and sanitation services 

off ered by the City of Pasadena.

  

Pictured (left to right):

Councilmember Andy Wilson

Mayor Terry Tornek

Chair Margaret McAustin

Vice Mayor Tyron Hampton

Assistant City Managers 

Julie Gutierrez and Nick Rodriguez 

Pasadena Water and Power Leadership Team 

(left to right):

Eric R. Klinkner
Assistant General Manager, Chief Deputy,

Customer Relations

Shari M. Thomas 
Assistant General Manager of Finance, 

Administration, and Customer Service

Gurcharan S. Bawa
General Manager 

Kelly Nguyen 
Assistant General Manager, Power Supply

Marvin D. Moon
Assistant General Manager, Power Delivery

Mitchell S. Dion 
Assistant General Manager, Water Delivery 
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Achieving Milestones
Achieving success requires vision, strategy, 
perseverance, careful execution, and 
continuous reassessment to ensure that 
priorities remain aligned with goals.  In Fiscal 

Year (“FY”) 2019, Pasadena Water and Power 

(“PWP”), a Department of the City of Pasadena, 

continued its commitment to key guiding 

initiatives that drive infrastructure improvements 

and expansion, higher service levels, increased 

service off erings and community benefi ts, 

workforce development, modernized technology, 

and the fi nancial health and stability of the utility. 

Major milestones were achieved on several 

ongoing multi-year projects including the 

development of new Water and Power Resource 

Plans, citywide expansion of electric vehicle 

(“EV”) infrastructure, a replacement of PWP's 

20-year old Customer Information System ("CIS"), 

and the revitalization of aging water production 

facilities.  Other smaller-scale projects, such as 

the launch of an automated utility project job 

tracking application, expansion of a successful

water-and-energy effi  ciency direct install 

program, enhancements to online customer 

self-service options, and construction of two 

new water-saving community Demonstration 

Gardens have been completed and are now 

operational. Rate actions were also approved 

for both utilities to ensure suffi  cient revenues 

to maintain operations and infrastructure as 

conservation-driven shifts in customer demand 

continue.

In order to encourage all members of the 

community to engage in good energy and water 

management practices,  increased outreach 

eff orts were focused on low-income customers 

and small businesses during the year.  With new 

programs and service off erings that help off set 

the costs of energy-and-water saving devices, 

technology, and retrofi ts, more customers can 

participate in usage reduction practices and 

lower their utility bills.

PWP’s ongoing successes could not be achieved 

without the hard work and dedication of its 

workforce in all areas of the organization, 

whose ongoing commitment to public service 

is evident in the superior levels of service 

provided every day.  When PWP customers fl ip 

the switch or turn on the tap, they can always 

expect safe and reliable electric and water 

services.  We will continue to strive for the 

ongoing privilege of serving as Pasadena’s 

community-owned utility.

Met operational needs, 
invested in infrastructure 
improvements, and 
implemented regulatory 
mandates associated with 
climate change initiatives. 

Completed and fi led the Power Integrated Resources 
Plan (“IRP”), a 20-year strategy for securing power 
supply resources that balances system reliability, fi scal 
responsibility, and environmental stewardship. The SB 
100-compliant plan was developed in collaboration with 
community stakeholders. 9
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Resource-specifi c 
Energy Procurement 
Proposals
Through ongoing strategic 

planning and targeted procure-

ment, Pasadena has secured 

suffi  cient long-term energy 

supply resources to meet 

forecasted retail energy 

demands through 2027.  In FY 

2019, PWP opposed bills that 

sought to force the procurement 

of resource-specifi c energy 

including geothermal (Assembly 

Bill (“AB”) 893, Garcia), and pumped hydroelectric storage 

(AB 2787 Quirk). While PWP applauds eff orts to expand 

alternative energy markets to increase the ability to integrate 

renewables, these bills would have signifi cantly increased 

energy costs for PWP and its customers.  Generally, California’s 

renewable energy goals have been technology-neutral, which 

allows utilities the fl exibility to procure resources that support 

distinct energy portfolios and best fi t customer needs.  As a 

fully-resourced utility, PWP seeks investment opportunities 

that directly benefi t its customers without detrimental rate 

impacts.  Through eff ective opponent advocacy and outreach, 

both bills failed in the Legislature.  PWP will continue to seek 

sensible renewable energy investment opportunities that 

achieve regulatory environmental targets while minimizing

impacts to ratepayers. 

Legislative Update

Forced procurement of resource-specifi c energy, a push for increased development of customer-supported distributed generation, 
and a reintroduced proposal to improve water quality in disadvantaged communities were among the key legislative measures 
monitored closely by California utilities during FY 2019.  As state lawmakers continue to drive aggressive climate change initiatives, 

utilities are challenged with balancing the environmental benefi ts with operational and fi scal feasibility to ensure that service reliability and 

ratepayers are protected.  PWP continues to actively engage in the legislative process to promote Pasadena’s priorities and collaborates 

with other public utilities on shared concerns through long time memberships in utility organizations such as the Southern California 

Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), California Municipal Utilities Association (“CMUA”), and the Association of California Water Agencies 

(“ACWA”).  Additionally, neighboring cities Glendale, Burbank, and Pasadena share legislative representation and regularly engage in 

“Tri-City” outreach and coalition eff orts to address specifi c regional issues.

Publicly Owned Utilties - Investor Owned 
Utilities - Community Choice Aggregators
As a publicly owned utility (“POU”), PWP provides customers with 

reliable water and electric services at reasonable rates.  POUs are 

non-profi t entities with rates designed to recover costs, including 

appropriate investments in the utility and community.  Signifi cant 

diff erences exist between POUs and their counterparts, investor-

owned utilities (“IOU”) such as Southern California Edison and Pacifi c 

Gas and Electric, and the more alternative energy-focused Community

Choice Aggregators (“CCA”). Each organization type has unique 

distinctions such as ownership and governance, size, structure, rate 

setting, and revenue distribution.   As a result, legislation must 

be carefully crafted to ensure that potential new laws impacting 

IOUs and CCAs are not detrimental to POUs.  

Evaluating the benefi ts and risks 

of legislative proposals is part 

of PWP’s review process in order 

to assess the operational and 

fi nancial feasibility of resulting 

laws. Through direct communica-

tion with state representatives or 

by participating in larger utility 

coalitions, PWP actively engages 

in California’s legislative process 

to ensure that Pasadena’s 

concerns are communicated 

as bills move through the 

legislative process.  
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Safe and Aff ordable 
Drinking Water Remained 
a Key Issue in FY 2019
State lawmakers continued to discuss various 

bills to improve water quality in disadvantaged 

communities including two proposals, the fi rst 

of which featured a mandatory ratepayer

water assessment, and a follow-up that 

included a voluntary contribution with a rate-

payer opt out. While both eff orts failed in the 

Legislature, SB 200 (Monning), a state-funded 

approach favored by many water agencies, 

passed and has since been signed into law.  

Together with California’s 2019-2020 budget, 

SB 200 created the Safe and Aff ordable 

Drinking Water Fund which will be eff ective 

through June 30, 2030.

Water Systems: Public, Private, 
and Mutually-owned
Similar to the unique characteristics of electric utilities, 

diff erences also exist between public water municipalities 

such as PWP, large investor-owned agencies such as American 

Water, and smaller mutually-owned water systems.  However, 

unlike the electric power industry, whose legislative infl uence 

is driven by the large IOUs, a higher percentage of water 

customers are served by public water agencies, which aff ords 

greater infl uence in the legislative process.  Approximately 40 

percent of Pasadena’s water supply comes from the Raymond 

Groundwater Basin while the balance is imported through 

an agreement with Metropolitan Water District of Southern 

California (“MWD”).  As members of both organizations, PWP 

participates regularly in the associated stakeholder processes 

to ensure that Pasadena is well represented as new laws and 

regulations are developed.  

POUs, IOUs, and CCAs compared

A Push for Distributed Generation
As more customers pursue energy self-generation options, bills like SB 1339 (Stern) aim to accelerate microgrid development by 

streamlining and expediting the customer interconnection process.  While PWP supports the expansion of microgrids in Pasadena, 

the associated technology must align with established regulations and environmental goals. Collaborative outreach from PWP 

and Burbank Water and Power ("BWP") was successful in driving amendments that require compliance with existing local 

regulations.  This provision allows PWP and BWP to continue prohibiting microgrids that operate on fossil fuels, except during 

emergencies.  These updates ensure consistency with local laws and established environmental goals.  SB 1339 was signed 

into law in CY 2018.  

UTILITY 
ATTRIBUTES

LOCAL PUBLICLY OWNED 
UTILITIES (POU)

INVESTOR OWNED 
UTILITIES (IOU)

COMMUNITY CHOICE 
AGGREGATORS (CCA)

Ownership Not for profi t/community-owned.
Private/Shareholders 

or investors.
A partnership between an aggregate group 

of customers and the incumbent utility.

Governance Locally elected/appointed boards. Shareholder–elected boards. CCA-appointed Board of Directors.

Utility size and 
Service Area

Usually small to medium and 
limited to service area.

Usually very large with 
multi-region service area.

Various in defi ned service area.

Scope of 
Services

Energy production/procurement, 
transmission, distribution, and 

system operations. 

Energy production/procurement, 
transmission, distribution, and 

system operations.

Energy procurement only.  The incumbent 
utility provides the infrastructure and 

operations.

Revenue/
Profi t

Rates recover costs. Allowable 
funding is reinvested in the utility 

and local community.

Rates recover costs and earn 
a return for investors.

Rates recover costs.  Additional return is 
and reinvested in energy resources and 

other CCA interests.

Initiated the stakeholder 
planning process for the 
Water System Resources 
Plan (“WSRP”), which will 
combine strategies for long-
term water infrastructure 
and resources planning in 
one comprehensive document.  
 

Received City Council approval 
for rate actions designed to cover 
the fi xed costs of maintaining 
the water and electric distribu-
tion systems while supporting 
growing customer interest in 
water and energy reduction 
technologies and practices.

Added two new community Demonstration 
Gardens to showcase water wise landscaping 
techniques.  Featuring native and drought tolerant 
plants, permeable walkways, and drip irrigation, 
the gardens help educate and engage the public in 
water-saving gardening practices.  Eight gardens 
have been completed in Pasadena since 2016, 
including fi ve City fi re station locations. 11
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California electric utilities are operating in a rapidly changing business environment focused on cleaner power generation, energy 
effi  cient technology, and an increasing number of customers pursuing self-generation options while depending on local utilities
only as backup providers.  Similarly, drought conditions and associated conservation mandates have changed consumer water 

consumption habits dramatically, resulting in steadily declining water sales.  However, despite reduced customer demand for both 

electricity and water delivery, utilities are obligated to remain operational and maintain their electric and water distribution systems 

to ensure availability at all times for all customers.   

In FY 2019, PWP received approval for electric and water rate actions that better support the usage needs of today’s customers while 

ensuring suffi  cient revenues to cover ongoing fi xed, operating, and capital investment costs.  Water rates were also streamlined to 

remove diff erentials historically applied to seasons and customers outside city limits.

  

New Rate Actions

ELECTRIC RATES WATER RATES

Reduced greenhouse 
gas (“GHG”) emissions 
by over 40 percent 
compared to 1990 levels.

Achieved a Renewable 
Portfolio Standard 
(“RPS”) of 35 percent 
for CY 2018. On track 
to meet 60 percent 
RPS by 2030. 

New Grid 
Access Charge

Increase 
Energy Charge

Eliminate rate diff erentials 
for customers outside 
Pasadena

Eliminate 
seasonal 
diff erentials

Increase 
Distribution 
and Customer (“D&C”) 
and Commodity Charges 

Exceeded goals for both energy and water savings through 
streamlined programs and public outreach.  Cumulative 
energy use was reduced by over 17,000 megawatt hours 
(“MWh”) which signifi cantly exceeds the 13,500 MWh target 
adopted by the City Council in 2017.  Total per capita 
water use of 151.15 gallons was 28 percent below baseline 
demand, exceeding the 20 percent reduction mandated 
by the Water Conservation Act of 2009.   Pasadena Water and Power 2019 Annual Report12
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Power Resources
PWP delivers approximately 1.1 million MWh of energy annually to 
about 65,000 retail customers. Power is generated both locally and 

imported from a mix of conventional and renewable energy contracts.  

As California continues increase and accelerate its Renewable Portfolio 

Standard ("RPS") and drive policies to achieve a carbon-free electric grid, 

utilities are challenged with satisfying progressive shifts in compliance targets while 

keeping rates stable.  In FY 2019, PWP continued to exceed state RPS and GHG reduction 

requirements, and completed a long-term power supply strategy that will guide Pasadena 

to achieving 60 percent RPS by 2030.  In addition, Pasadena’s electric vehicle ("EV") 

program has accelerated dramatically with several new infrastructure projects in 

progress and ownership registrations exceeding state averages for comparable cities.  

2018 Power Integrated Resource Plan
To ensure ongoing reliable service at competitive rates, and compliance with state regulatory requirements, eff ective 

long-term resource planning is critical.  In December 2018, the City Council approved PWP’s 2018 Power Integrated 

Resources Plan ("IRP"), a comprehensive 20-year generating resources planning blueprint designed to balance system 

reliability with fi scal responsibility and environmental stewardship. The IRP has also since been approved by the California Energy 

Commission ("CEC").  Developed through an extensive, collaborative community stakeholder process, the IRP is compliant with 

regulatory requirements, features short and long-term resources, and will be evaluated annually to ensure portfolio optimization 

in light of current laws, regulations, market conditions, and community preferences.  As a leader in sustainable resource planning, 

PWP has developed an ambitious IRP that moves beyond current regulations and adopts a clean energy strategy compliant with 

SB 350 and the newly enacted SB 100.  PWP reviews its resource mix annually and updates the IRP every 3 to 5 years.

The 2018 IRP meets or exceeds state RPS and GHG targets.

Eliminates coal-fi red generation by 2027

SB 100-Compliant
• 60%+ RPS by 2030
• 75%+ GHG reduction by 2030, compared to 1990 levels
 - Exceeds the state target of 40% GHG reduction by 2030

Completed the installation of 40 chargers 
at the City Yards to accommodate the 
growing number of electric fl eet vehicles.  
Additional EV infrastructure projects, 
including the Marengo Charging Plaza, 
are in progress and will be completed in 
FY 2020 and beyond. 

Expanded the Water & Energy Direct Install Program 
(“WeDIP”) to include kitchen equipment and refrigeration
measures.  Launched in 2013, the popular program 
provided free energy and water effi ciency upgrades to 
342 qualifying commercial customers during the year, 
with more than half being in Disadvantaged Area 
Communities (“DAC”). 

New long-term resource commitments must be carbon-free
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 CY CY CY CURRENT CONTRACT
RENEWABLE RESOURCES 2018  2019 i 2020 ii STATUS TYPE

HYDROPOWER                                           
Azusa Hydro 0.0 0.0 0.0 Offl  ine PWP

WIND                                                       
High Wind 12.8 11.1 11.9 Online PWP
Milford Iiii 10.0 1.1 0.0 Online SCPPA
Powerex 0.0 0.0 70.0   PWP
Short Term Energy Purchase 113.5 95.6 60.1  

LANDFILL GAS                                          
Chiquita Canyoniii 39.6 4.6 0.0 Online SCPPA
Puente Hills 79.1 72.3 57.7 Online SCPPA

GEOTHERMAL                                              
Heber Southiii 16.4 2.1 0.0 Online SCPPA

SOLAR     
Windsor Reservoir Solar 0.7 0.8 0.8 Online PWP
Columbia II Solar 0.0 7.0 7.2 Online SCPPA
Kingbird Solar A Project  0.0 60.2 61.0 Online PWP
Antelope Big Sky Ranch Solar  18.7 17.5 18.2 Online SCPPA
Summer Solar  0.0 18.6 18.3 Online SCPPA

REC ONLY     
Falls Creek 59.1 62.0 63.0 Online PWP
Purchased 6.5 23.4 41.2 Online PWP

Total Renewable 356.4 376.5 409.3  
Retail Sales 1,018.0 1,003.9 1,023.3  
% Renewable 35.0% 37.5% 40.0%   
% IRP Renewable Target  35.0% 37.5% 40.0%  

PWP RENEWABLE ENERGY PORTFOLIO 
COMPLIANCE SUMMARY

(GWh per year as reported for compliance, not actual generated)

Renewables 
Portfolio 
Standard (“RPS”) 
Update
In order to maintain reliability

and protect ratepayers in 

today's climate of increasingly 

aggressive RPS targets, 

PWP focuses on practical 

investments that meet 

Pasadena’s specifi c needs 

and long-term goals.  Thirty- 

fi ve percent of PWP’s retail load 

was supplied by of renewable 

resources at the end of CY 2018, 

exceeding state requirements.  

PWP’s RPS portfolio also 

recently achieved compliance 

status from the CEC for the 

2014-2016 Compliance Period 

2 assessment and is on track to 

meet the “60 percent by 2030” 

requirement mandated by 

SB 100.  In addition, GHG 

emissions were reduced by 

over 40 percent compared to 

1990 levels.  Through annual 

reassessment of its renewables 

portfolio, PWP is able to 

proactively adapt its resource 

mix to California’s dynamic

regulatory climate while 

minimizing fi nancial exposure 

to ratepayers.  PWP’s voluntary 

goal of 40 percent RPS by 2020 

exceeds the state mandate of 

33 percent by 2030.

CY = Calendar Year; SCPPA = Southern California Public Power Authority    

i Preliminary Only    

ii Forecast Only    

iii Excess Procurement sold to a third party    

Low Carbon Fuel Standard
In FY 2018, PWP began participating in the Low Carbon 
Fuel Standard Program (“LCFS”), a market-based cap 
and trade approach to lowering transportation-related 
GHG emissions.  Established by the California Air 
Resources Board (“CARB”) in 2009, the program 
incentivizes EV expansion by off ering credits for 
emissions “avoided” through increased EV market 
penetration.  For each metric ton of avoided emissions 
associated with EVs, CARB issues one credit which 
entities are able to sell though the energy market to 
fund EV-related projects and programs.

PWP received LCFS 
proceeds of $1.4 million 
in FY 2019 which is helping to 
fund EV infrastructure expansion 
in Pasadena. Currently, CARB 
is assessing the program for 
changes that could redirect some 
portion of utility proceeds to 
support DAC locations and also 
price reductions for new EVs 
purchased in California.
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EVs Take Off  in Pasadena
Eff orts to accelerate the adoption of EVs 
continued during FY 2019 with overall vehicle 
registrations in Pasadena now exceeding 
statewide averages for similar cities. In 
addition to increasing utility revenue, improving 
local air quality, and reducing GHG emissions, 
EVs help PWP meet state and local clean 
transportation targets and support Pasadena’s 
sustainability-minded community.

In accordance with the City’s 2018 Climate Action Plan, which 
calls for the expansion of alternative fuel vehicles and associated 
infrastructure, 38 electric pool cars were added to the City 
fl eet to replace aging, ineffi  cient gasoline-powered vehicles.  
Installation of charging infrastructure to accommodate 57 
vehicles is also underway through a grant from the South Coast 
Air Quality Management District.  A majority of the chargers 
were installed in FY 2019 with the balance expected to be 
completed in FY 2020.  Over the course of three years, the 
current fl eet of 50 City EVs is expected to save approximately 
28,500 gallons of gasoline and reduce CO

2
 by 120,000 pounds. 

The new vehicles are part of a long-term eff ort to switch to 
cleaner transportation fuel alternatives.

PWP is pursuing various strategies to 
promote the use of EVs, including the 
expansion of charging infrastructure 
throughout Pasadena city limits.  One 
of the challenges that hinders more 
widespread adoption of EVs is the 

“range anxiety,” or fear of having insuffi  cient charge to reach 
destination without availability of convenient charging stations.   
PWP is helping the public overcome this concern by adding 
more charging infrastructure throughout the city with two 
projects nearly completed and others being evaluated.  The 
Marengo Charging Plaza, a collaboration between PWP and 
Tesla located at the Marengo Avenue garage in close proximity 
to the Paseo shopping mall and the Pasadena Convention 

PWP issued almost $300,000 in EV-related 
residential and commercial rebates in FY 2019.

  TOTAL 
 APPLICATIONS  VALUE OF
REBATE PROCESSED REBATES

EV purchase or lease *565 $142,400

Residential L2 Charger Installation 36 $10,300

Residential L2 Wi-Fi Charger Installation 52 $31,045

Commercial Charger Installation 40 $107,000

Total 693 $290,745

Center, will feature 24 Tesla 
Superchargers and 20 PWP-
fi nanced universal fast chargers.  
Expected to be operational by 
December 2019, this location 
will be the largest fast charging 
plaza in the United States.  
Also, construction of charging 
infrastructure at the Holly Street 
Garage for both City fl eet and 
public use has been ongoing and is expected to be completed in 
early 2020.   The City is currently assessing numerous additional 
sites throughout Pasadena as potential locations for new 
infrastructure construction projects.   

Attractive incentives and the award winning Power Up Pasadena – 
Electrifi cation Initiatives in a Green City marketing campaign have 
also contributed to an increase in EV adoption in Pasadena.  A new 
tiered rebate system for residential owners off ers up to $750 in 
rebates for new or used EVs and up to $600 for each charger 
installation.  Bonus rebates apply for income-qualifi ed customers 
and if the vehicle is purchased or leased through a local dealership.

Commercial customers qualify for incentives of up to $3,000 per 
installation for employee-use chargers, or up to $6,000 for chargers 
available to the public or in Disadvantaged Area Communities 
("DAC").  With total incentives of up to $50,000 per account, 
Pasadena’s commercial customers are eligible to off set signifi cant 
installation costs while augmenting community EV infrastructure 
expansion eff orts.   

*Includes 27 EVs purchased or leased through local dealerships and 10 that 
qualifi ed for special low-income incentives.

PWP’s 2018 Power Up Pasadena – 

Electrifi cation Initiatives in a Green City campaign received 
the 2019 Silver Stevie® award from the American Business 
Association for Marketing Campaign of the Year in the 
Government/Institutional/Recruitment category.
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Providing the Pasadena community with safe and reliable electric and water services will 
always be at the core of PWP’s priorities, and great focus is placed on the planning, maintenance, 

and safety of the electric and water distribution systems. With infrastructure that is over a century old, 

PWP relies on solid, long-term planning ensure the ongoing safety and viability of its distribution systems.

In FY 2019, work started on updates to the Power Delivery Master Plan, a comprehensive long-term planning guide that 

will drive Power-related capital improvements for the next 20 years.  The update will feature a comprehensive analysis 

of the electric distribution system with focus on system expansion, operational methods, emerging technologies, and regulatory 

changes.  Development also continued on the Water System and Resources Plan (“WSRP”) which will combine resources 

and infrastructure planning into one long-term strategy.  Both Plans are being developed in collaboration with community 

stakeholders and are expected to be completed in FY 2020.

Key Infrastructure Improvements in FY 2019

 POWER DELIVERY MASTER PLAN

• Drives future priorities for system expansion, operational 

 methods, emerging technologies, and regulatory changes.

• Incorporates practices that improve reliability, sustainability, 

 and support load growth.

• Identifi es opportunities for infrastructure improvements 

 or replacements.

• Evaluates data and trends to determine future electric 

 system requirements.

Updates to Long-term Operational Plans

Infrastructure 
and Distribution

WATER SYSTEM
• Replaced nine aging water mains 
 and reduced replacement cycle time 
 by almost 14 percent.

• Designed and awarded contracts to upgrade the Arroyo  
 Booster station which will add fi re protection for 
 northeast sections of Pasadena.

• Replaced almost 1,500 water meters with Automated   
 Meter Reader (AMR) meters.

• Implemented new protocols to evaluate and extend 
 the life of distribution mains, enhance the water 
 system, and improve service standards.

• Initiated two large main replacement projects, including 
 the 85-year-old Orange Grove transmission line that 
 distributes drinking water between Pasadena’s two 
 largest reservoirs.

ELECTRIC SYSTEM
• Replaced approximately 3.4 circuit   
 miles of 34.5kV sub transmission line   
 with improved automation, protection,  
 and SCADA remote control.

• Replaced 81 distribution transformers and 41
  underground switches.

• Replaced over 26 miles of overhead and underground   
 conductors.

• Replaced 132 wooden power poles and piloted the 
 installation of Pasadena’s fi rst two fi berglass poles.

• Reinforced several underground vaults using new   
technology that signifi cantly extends the structural  

 life at approximately half the cost of replacement.

 WATER SYSTEM AND RESOURCES PLAN

• Combines long-term resources and infrastructure planning  

 into one comprehensive guide.

• Improves management and availability of local water supply.

• Prioritizes replacement and rehabilitation of century old 

 water infrastructure.

• Sets water conservation targets that exceed state 

 regulations by 10 percent.
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In May 2019, PWP partnered with the Public Health Department for Rethink Your Drink Day at 

La Pintoresca Park, one of several public events to promote Water Awareness Month.  The annual 

celebration was established in 1989 to highlight the value of reliable, high quality water, and 

PWP hosts a variety of events every year to showcase its services and engage the public in water 

conservation eff orts.  The May event introduced the new Hydration Station Program, featuring the 

direct installation of public-use water stations at various community centers in Pasadena.  The 

stations provide a convenient place to fi ll reusable bottles with high quality local tap water, which 

encourages healthier beverage choices and reduces the plastic waste that enters landfi lls and the 

water stream.  Additional hydration stations are scheduled to be installed at Villa Park, Brenner 

Park, and several other Community Center locations.      

Water Facility Upgrades
With aging water production facilities that include 

two previous century reservoirs, several others 

nearing the 100 year mark, and a signifi cant number 

of wells dating back to the 1920s, plans are underway 

to upgrade or replace key infrastructure to enhance 

groundwater and augment local supplies.  In FY 2019, 

the assessment was completed for the replacement 

of Sunset 1 and Sunset 2 Reservoirs, built in 1888 and 

1900, respectively.   A project was also initiated to replace the 85-year 

old transmission line that distributes drinking water between Sunset and 

Jones Reservoirs as well as four key valves that will facilitate the use of 

the Orange Grove line as a substitute while the Sunset Reservoirs are out 

of service. The new “Sunset Complex” will feature multiple reservoirs, 

pump stations, water treatment and disinfection facilities, and landscape 

enhancements.  Preliminary design work is ongoing and expected to be 

completed in early 2020.

PWP also continued to refurbish and repair inoperable wells during the year 

with Woodbury now back in service and Sheldon expected to be back online 

in FY 2020.  Other aging wells are also being assessed to determine the 

feasibility of repairs versus permanent shut down.  To replace capacity 

lost through the potential closures, PWP anticipates drilling three new 

wells in FY 2020 with pump additions planned for the following year.  Work 

has also been initiated to add treatment facilities to support the 

new wells, Sunset Complex, and Jones Reservoir.  

Work is also being done to enhance the appearance of 

the water facilities.  The Sheldon Reservoir Project,which 

includes a new community demonstration garden along 

Coniston Road, will showcase a variety of drought tolerant 

plantings, water-effi  cient drip irrigation, and landscaping 

techniques designed to enhance soil moisture retention 

and cool the landscape area.  Sheldon will be the 9th 

demonstration garden to be constructed in Pasadena 

since 2015, following projects at the Friends In Deed 

location on Washington Boulevard and Los Robles Avenue; 

Jackie Robinson Post Offi  ce on North Mentor Avenue; a 

City parcel at the corner of Washington Boulevard and 

Marengo Avenue; and fi ve Pasadena fi re stations.  The 

gardens enhance the areas aesthetically, and provide the 

public with transformative, water-saving landscape ideas.  

The Sheldon Reservoir Project is expected to be completed 

in the spring of 2020, with additional facilities currently 

being assessed for future landscaping projects.  

Building bench strength to prepare an organization for future 

challenges is critical, especially in the highly specialized utility industry.  

In March 2019, PWP celebrated its fi rst group of graduates of the 

state-certifi ed Electrical Tester and Electrical 

Mechanic Apprenticeship Programs, two 

comprehensive four-year training programs 

designed to prepare qualifi ed trainees 

for journey level roles as Electrical 

Mechanics and Electrical Testers. 

Developed in collaboration with 

the International Brotherhood of 

Electrical Workers Local 18 in 2014, 

Electrical Apprenticeship Programs 
the comprehensive programs require a minimum of 6,500 hours 

of progressively complex on-the-job training, a minimum of 144 

annual hours of outside coursework, a series of profi ciency tests, 

and a cumulative fi nal exam that requires demonstration 

of a task associated with each stage of the program.  

Trainees work under the direction of seasoned 

mechanics and testers and are able to participate 

directly in tasks and events.  Graduates 

receive state certifi cation from the California 

Department of Industrial Relations and are 

prepared to continue and expand their 

careers in the utility industry.   

RETHINK 
YOUR 
DRINK 
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CIS Project
Signifi cant progress was made on a major project to replace PWP’s 20-year old Customer 
Information System (“CIS”) with a modern solution that integrates billing functionality with 

improved features such as a full-service customer portal, real-time water and energy usage data, and ability to support rate structures 

for evolving technologies such as solar and electric vehicles. Launched in FY 2018 following a comprehensive needs assessment 

process, the CIS Project is a multi-year, cross-departmental eff ort that will improve fi nancial management and controls for PWP and 

provide numerous benefi ts to customers.

In late FY 2019, a contract was awarded for a new cloud-based CIS to replace the existing system.  The new solution features highly 

confi gurable software that is easy to upgrade, with robust audit and workfl ow management capabilities for improved fi nancial control.  

Customers can expect a rich user experience through a host of programs and services.  The solution also provides the platform that 

will enable PWP to launch operational technologies such as interactive smart meters, early water leak 

detection, and remote power turn on and off .  Implementation is scheduled to begin in the fall of 2019.

A contract for Project Management, Quality Assurance, and Test Support was also awarded during the year 

which will support the operational scope of the project to ensure that all requirements are met on time and 

within budget.  

Technology

Invested over $42 million 
in capital improvements, 
including system expansion, 
infrastructure maintenance 
and upgrades, vehicles and 
equipment, and customer 
projects. 

Celebrated the fi rst group 
of graduates of the state-
certifi ed Electrical Tester 
and Electrical Mechanic 
Apprenticeship Programs.  
The intense four-year 
training programs produce 
skilled electrical workers 
that strengthen the current 
workforce while creating a 
seamless transition to 
future challenges. 

The CIS Project is expected to be fully implemented by late 2021.

New 
CIS

Supports 
Business 
Initiatives

 Improves 
System 

Agility and 
Access

Provides 
Greater 

Financial 
Control

Improves 
Customer 

Experience
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Awarded contracts for a new Customer 
Information System (“CIS”) and associated 
project management, quality assurance, and test 
support services.  The new solution will integrate 
existing utility billing functionality with improved 
customer self-service and data tracking features. 

Completed an upgrade of 
PWP’s Storage Area Network 
which supports almost 200 
virtual services, and supports 
automation initiatives and 
long-term operational needs. 

Expanded the Geographic 
Information System to track 
water quality work orders 
including main breaks, 
customer complaints, 
and sampling points.

New Mass Notifi cation 
Program Launched 
Eff ective communication during emergencies is not 
only a good practice, it’s essential to public safety.  
Whether it’s notifi cation of a new outage, updates on 

restoration time, or a water quality concern, providing 

the public with accurate information, regular updates, 

and advisories will allow citizens in aff ected locations 

to be better prepared to assess personal safety and 

request assistance.  In FY 2019, PWP joined other 

City departments in implementing Everbridge mass 

notifi cation software, which provides tailored 

communications to targeted groups through a variety 

of communications devices.   PWP is currently testing 

the tool both internally and externally and determining 

ways to integrate the technology to bolster its 

notifi cations process. 

Utility Project Job Tracking
PWP is also making it easier to check the status of utility service planning projects 

online through a new job tracking application.  Launched in March 2019 and 

available through PWP’s website, customers that have requested special electric 

construction services for projects such a new home development, additional 

electrical panels, solar panels, or the addition of EV charging equipment are 

now able to view project details and progress at every stage - from initial request 

through completion.  The tool provides immediate, up-to-date information that 

can be accessed at any time through any device and also streamlines 

scheduling and communication for staff .  Automation has also 

been added to the payment process which now gives customers 

the option of paying for projects online with a credit card.   

PWPweb.com/ProjectTracker

19
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Programs and Services
To engage the entire community in good water and energy management practices 
and encourage a wider adoption of technologies and improvements that help save 

water and electricity, PWP increased its focus on hard-to-reach market segments 

in FY 2019.  Programs and services available to income-qualifi ed customers include 

refrigerator exchanges, home energy effi  ciency upgrades and retrofi ts, water effi  cient 

landscaping, and graywater laundry retrofi t kits. PWP also expanded its EV incentive 

program to include bonus rebates for income qualifi ed customers.

Small commercial customers continued to participate in the successful Water 

& Energy Direct Install Program (“WeDIP”), which now includes additional kitchen 

and refrigeration measures and has been expanded to select medium-sized 

commercial customers.  Overall participation in WeDIP of small, disadvantaged 

area community (“DAC”) businesses increased by over 75 percent in FY 2019. 

PWP’s rebate and incentive programs have also been improved with online 

applications, status tracking, and shorter processing times.   

Public interest continues to grow for programs and technology that conserve 
water.   PWP’s Watershed Wise Landscape Program now features fi ve workshops 

that focus on specifi c topics including creating healthy soil, supporting native plants 

and wildlife, irrigation system retrofi tting, and rainwater capture through design and technology.  

PWP also secured a $50,000 Innovation Conservation Program grant from the Metropolitan 

Water District of Southern California to conduct research on water savings potential and 

fi nancing strategies for onsite water reuse systems. 

Continued to partner with Pasadena-based youth organizations that provide opportunities 
for students to participate directly in various PWP programs and events and gain insight 
into careers in the utility industry.  Youth Ambassadors assisted with fl yer distribution 
services promoting PWP’s effi ciency and conservation programs while students at Pasadena 
City College were engaged to offer insight about how today’s water resources decisions 
impact future generations.  Conservation-focused Outward Bound Adventures (“OBA”) 
participated as stewards for the Arroyo Seco Watershed, providing vegetation management, 
invasive species removal, and habitat restoration under the guidance of PWP.  OBA members 
were also invited to participate as stakeholders in the development of PWP’s Water System
and Resources Plan. Participants in these valuable programs learn about water and energy conservation, 
utility operations, and receive career mentoring while serving their communities.  

EV Purchase or Lease – Base Rebate
  BONUS FOR  
 LOCAL INCOME QUALIFIED  MAXIMUM
BASIC REBATE DEALERSHIP APPLICANTS ELIGIBILITY

$250 + $250 +$250 $750

Income qualifi ed customers that purchase or lease through a local dealership 
are eligible for up to $750 in rebates.
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 ENERGY EFFICIENCY   

$3,320,512
  Rebates and Incentive Programs

 • Home Energy Rebates 

 • Refrigerator and Freezer Recycling  

 •Residential Electric Vehicle and Charger 

 Incentive Program

 •Commercial Electric Vehicle Charger 

 Incentive Program

 • Commercial Energy Effi  ciency Partnering/  

 Customized Incentive Program 

 • Business Rebates Program 

  No-Cost Direct Install and/or Services
• Home Improvement Program

 • Income Qualifi ed Refrigerator 

 Exchange Program

 • Income Qualifi ed Energy Savings 

 Assistance Program

 • Home Energy Reports  

 • LivingWise Education Program 

 • Commercial On Demand Effi  ciency Program 

 • Small Business Water Energy Direct 

 Install Program 

PWP in the Community
PWP continues to have a strong presence in the community 
and participated in over 60 events, workshops, and school 
programs during the year.

 WATER CONSERVATION

$913,000
  Rebates and Incentive Programs

• Residential Fixture Rebates

• Turf Removal Rebates

 • Commercial Fixture Rebates

 • Laundry-to-Landscape Greywater Kit Incentive  

  No-Cost Direct Install and/or Services
• Water Audits / Landscape  Surveys

• Income Qualifi ed Landscape Direct 

 Install Program 

 • Income Qualifi ed Laundry-to-Landscape 

 Greywater Direct Install Program 

• Hydration Station Program (Direct Installation 

 of Bottle Filling Stations in DAC areas)

 • Water and Energy Direct Install Program 

 (Commercial Small and Medium Business) 

 - DAC area focus

• Home Improvement Program 

 – Water Effi  ciency Measures

• Home Water Reports 

PWP customers received over $4.2 million in rebates, incentives, and no-cost 
direct install services in FY 2019:

Rethink Your Drink

Eliot Magnet 
Science Night

John 
Muir 
High 
School 
Solar 
Cup

Girl Scout 
Tour of 
Jones 
Reservoir
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Government Auditing Standards

203 N. Brea Blvd., Suite 203           Brea, CA 92821          Phone: 714.672.0022

An Association of 
Independent Accounting Firms 
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Opinion

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 
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CITY OF PASADENA

POWER ENTERPRISE FUND
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2019

The Management of Pasadena Water and Power (“PWP”), a 

department of the City of Pasadena (“City”) and also referred 

to in this report as “Utility,” off ers the following overview 

and analysis of the basic fi nancial statements of the Power 

Enterprise Fund (“Power Fund”) for the fi scal year ended June 

30, 2019. We encourage readers to utilize the information 

presented here in conjunction with the accompanying basic 

fi nancial statements. All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, 

are expressed in thousands of dollars.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

Management has elected to provide not only highlights to the 

basic fi nancial statements, but also vital statistics and other 

relevant data and information associated with the Power 

Fund. Because the Utility is a business-like activity of the City 

of Pasadena, an enterprise fund is used to account for its 

power utility operations. Information on City-wide fi nancial 

results is available in the City of Pasadena Comprehensive 

Annual Financial Report as of June 30, 2019.

The Power Fund’s basic fi nancial statements are comprised 

of two components: 1) fi nancial statements, and 2) notes to 

the fi nancial statements. Included as part of the fi nancial 

statements are the Statement of Net Position; Statement 

of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position; and 

Statement of Cash Flows.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all 

of the Power Fund’s assets, deferred outfl ows of resources, 

liabilities, and deferred infl ows of resources, with the 

diff erence reported as “net position.” Over time, increases 

or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator 

of whether the fi nancial position of the Power Fund is improving 

or deteriorating.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 

Position details the changes in the Power Fund’s net position 

during the past fi scal year. Operating results are recorded 

under the accrual basis of accounting in which all changes 

in net position are reported as underlying events occur, 

regardless of the timing of cash fl ows. Thus, the statement 

refl ects revenues and expenses for some items that will 

generate cash fl ows during future fi scal periods; i.e. accounts 

payable and accounts receivable.

The Statement of Cash Flows presents the fl ow of cash and 

cash equivalents during the last fi scal year, including certain 

restricted amounts.

The Notes to Basic Financial Statements provides additional 

information that is essential to the full understanding of the 

data provided in the basic fi nancial statements.

Financial Highlights

At the end of FY 2019, the Power Fund’s net position, which 

represents assets and deferred outfl ows, exceeded its liabilities 

and deferred infl ows by about $581.4 million. The net position 

balance includes $272.2 million of the Power Fund’s investment 

in capital assets, less any related debt used to acquire those 

assets, that are still outstanding and $130.0 million of restricted 

resources that are subject to external restrictions on how 

they may be used. The remaining balance of $179.2 million 

represents unrestricted uses in accordance with fi nance-

related legal requirements. 

The total retail electric energy sold was about 1.02 million 

megawatt hours, a decrease of approximately 2.1% 

compared to the prior fi scal year. Total operating revenues 

were approximately $218.1 million, an increase of about 

$5.9 million or 2.8% compared to FY 2018, while total

 operating expenses were about $187.3 million, an increase 

of approximately $8.5 million or 4.7%.  Investment earnings 

were approximately $12.9 million, an increase of about 

$11.2 million or 635.6% compared to FY 2018 due to strong 

market performance. About $17.6 million was transferred 

out of the Power Fund to the City of Pasadena.
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Financial Analysis

The Condensed Statement of Net Position for the Power Fund 

is as follows: 

(in thousands) FY 2019 FY 2018 Change

Assets 

Current assets  $272,703  241,023  31,680 

Noncurrent assets  111,594  126,190  (14,596)

Capital assets  517,491  521,122  (3,631)

Total assets 901,788 888,335  13,453 

Deferred outfl ows  13,388  17,484  (4,096)

Liabilities 

Current liabilities 30,607  27,954  2,653 

Noncurrent liabilities 300,210  315,561  (15,351)

Total liabilities 330,817 343,515  (12,698)

Deferred infl ows 2,969  3,820  (851)

Net position

Net investment in capital assets 272,159 262,322  9,837 

Restricted:

  Debt service 18,225 25,050  (6,825)

  Contribution to General Fund 17,315 17,609  (294)

  Stranded investments 89,252 97,584  (8,332)

  Other purposes 5,188 3,042  2,146 

Unrestricted 179,251 152,877  26,374 

Total net position  $581,390  558,484  22,906 

As of June 30, 2019, the Power Fund’s total assets increased 

by approximately $13.5 million or 1.5%, primarily due to 

approximate increases of $31.3 million in unrestricted cash and 

investments and $1.7 million in inventories.  These increases 

were partially off set by approximate decreases of $10.1 million 

in other restricted cash and investments resulting mainly from 

drawdowns from 2016A Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds to 

pay for capital project costs and Stranded Investment Reserve 

(“SIR”) Fund; $3.6 million in capital assets, net of accumulated 

depreciation, due to asset retirement and depreciation; 

$4.3 million in notes receivable from Intermountain Power 

Authority (“IPA”); and $1.5 million in prepayments and advances.  

Deferred outfl ow of resources decreased by about $4.1 million 

or 23.4% compared to the prior fi scal year mainly due to a 

decrease in deferred outfl ows related to net pension liability.

Major capital projects that occurred during FY 2019 include 

replacement of distribution transformers, switches, and 

overcurrent cables; conversion of the 4kV distribution system 

to 17kV; power distribution expansion to accommodate new 

services; installation of high and low voltage electric services 

for system expansion; installation of street cables and 

equipment; replacement of one 34.5kV sub-transmission line 

(34-11) between TM Goodrich and Santa Anita receiving stations 

and a complete upgrade of the line’s protection, metering, and 

control systems; and other electric system improvements.

As of June 30, 2019, the Stranded Investment Reserve (“SIR”) 

balance was about $89.3 million. Of this amount, approximately 

$65.9 million was restricted cash and investment available to 

cover stranded costs resulting from the uncertainty associated 

with long-term commitments for energy from Intermountain 

Power Project (“IPP”). The remaining $23.4 million represents 

the balance of the Intermountain Power Authority (“IPA”) 

subordinate notes, net of premium/discount. In FY 2019, PWP 

received approximately $0.7 million in interest income from IPA 

relating to the subordinate notes. In September 2018, a plan of 

withdrawing $7.0 million per year beginning FY 2019 through 

FY 2022 from the SIR was approved to off set the stranded costs 

associated with the Intermountain Power Plant and Magnolia 

Power Plant projects, and potential increases in power costs 

to customers.

Total liabilities as of June 30, 2019 decreased by nearly 

$12.7 million or 3.7% compared to the prior fi scal year. This 

was mainly due to approximate decreases of $0.9 million in 

accounts payable, $14.0 million in revenue bonds payable and 

$1.7 million in net pension liability associated with Governmental 

Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68 – Accounting

and Financial Reporting for Pensions (“GASB 68”). These 

decreases were off set by increases of $2.8 million in unearned 

revenues; $0.3 million in deposits payables and $0.8 in net 

other postemployment benefi ts (“OPEB”) liability. Deferred 

infl ow of resources decreased by about $0.9 million or 22.3% 

compared to the prior fi scal year mainly due to a decrease 

in deferred infl ows related to net pension liability.

The net position at the end of the year was about $581.4 million, 

an increase of approximately $22.9 million or 4.1% compared 

to the prior fi scal year due to the net income from FY 2019.

  FINANCIAL SECTION 

C I T Y  O F  PA S A D E N A  |  P O W E R  E N T E R P R I S E  F U N D  |  M a n a g e m e n t ’ s  D i s c u s s i o n  a n d  A n a l y s i s  |  J u n e  3 0 ,  2 0 1 9
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The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 

Position for the Power Fund is as follows:  

(in thousands) FY 2019 FY 2018 Change

Operating revenues:

Retail  $180,028 182,755  (2,727)

Wholesale 10,714 9,911  803 

Miscellaneous/other revenues 27,313 19,450  7,863 

Total operating revenues 218,055 212,116  5,939 

Operating expenses: 

Purchased power and fuel - retail 97,113 88,998  8,115 

Purchased power and fuel - wholesale 6,444 4,237  2,207 

Other operating expenses 28,023 28,962  (939)

Administrative and general 24,055 26,439  (2,384)

Depreciation 31,702 30,217  1,485 

Total operating expenses 187,337 178,853  8,484 

Operating income 30,718 33,263  (2,545)

Non-operating revenues (expenses): 

Investment earnings (incl. net change 

in fair market of investments) 12,925 1,757  11,168 

Other non-operating revenues (expenses) 656 1,196  (540)

Interest expense  (9,538)  (9,019)  (519)

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)  4,043  (6,066)  10,109 

Income before contributions and transfers  34,761  27,197  7,564 

Contributions and transfers: 

Capital contributions  1,560  2,391  (831)

Transfers in from City of Pasadena  4,194  1,910  2,284 

Transfers out to City of Pasadena  (17,609)  (16,847)  (762)

Changes in net position 22,906 14,651  8,255 

Net position, beginning of year 558,484  543,833  14,651 

Net position, end of year  $581,390  558,484  22,906 

The Power Fund’s operating revenues were about $218.1 

million, an increase of approximately $5.9 million or 2.8% 

compared to the prior fi scal year. Retail revenues decreased 

by about $2.7 million or 1.5% mainly due to decrease in retail 

sales.  Total retail revenues were approximately $180.0 million, 

of which about $115.3 million was related to commercial 

and industrial, nearly $63.0 million related to residential and 

approximately $1.7 million related to street lights and traffi  c 

signals; and other unbilled retail revenues.  Wholesale energy 

revenues were about $10.7 million, an increase of approximately 

$0.8 million or 8.1% from prior fi scal year due to an increase 

in wholesale activities with the California Independent System

Operator (“CAISO”).  Miscellaneous and other revenues 

increased by about $7.9 million or 40.4% compared to prior 

fi scal year, largely due to increases of $6.2 million in sales of 

allocated cap and trade emissions allowances, $0.9 million 

in Low Carbon Fuel Standard (“LCFS”) revenues, and $0.5 

million in Renewable Energy Credit (“REC”) Sales. Participating 

Transmission Owners (“PTO”) revenues and other related 

transmission revenues received from CAISO to cover PWP’s 

Transmission Revenue Requirement (“TRR”) amounted to 

approximately $14.9 million, an increase of about $0.3 million 

or 2.0% compared to the prior fi scal year.

Investment earnings, including the net change in fair value of 

investments, were approximately $12.9 million, an increase 

of about $11.2 million or 635.6% compared to the prior fi scal 

year due to a favorable market performance in FY 2019.  

Other non-operating revenues, net of non-operating expenses, 

decreased by nearly $0.5 million or 45.2% mainly due to 

loss in retirement of capital assets, which is off set with 

reimbursement from Southern California Gas Company 

for the Home Improvement Program.

Total capital contributions received from developers were 

approximately $1.6 million, a decrease of about $0.8 million 

or 34.8% compared to the prior fi scal year. PWP also received 

$4.2 million from the Underground Utility Surtax Fund to 

fund underground electrical conduit projects.  This was an 

increase of about $2.3 million or 119.6% compared to the 

prior fi scal year. 
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Total operating expenses amounted to about $187.3 million, 

an increase of approximately $8.5 million or 4.7% over the prior 

fi scal year mainly due to increase in purchased power, fuel 

and gas, overhead and depreciation.  These increases were 

off set by decreases in administrative and general expense. 

Total purchased power expense was about $93.6 million, 

which represented 39% of the $237.4 million in total uses of 

Power funds. Administrative and general expense amounted 

to about $24.1 million, a decrease of approximately $2.4 million 

or 9.0% over the prior fi scal year mainly due to decreases 

in utility rebates and insurance and increases in material 

overhead and equipment clearing.

Depreciation expense was about $31.7 million, an increase 

of about $1.5 million or 4.9% compared to the prior fi scal year 

due to the closing of capital projects completed in prior years.  

Total interest expense was about $9.5 million, an increase of 

approximately $0.5 million or 5.8%.

In compliance with the City Charter, PWP transferred 

approximately $17.6 million to the City General Fund during 

FY 2019, an increase of about $0.8 million or 4.5% compared 

to the prior fi scal year.  This increase was mainly due to higher 

retail revenues as a result of rate increases implemented in 

FY 2018 to the transmission service charge and distribution 

and customer charges. The transfer rate for FY 2019 was 

based on 10% of the gross operating revenues from retail 

sales in prior year.

Capital Assets 

As of June 30, 2019, the Power Fund’s net utility plant and 

equipment; which includes investments in production, 

transmission, distribution facilities, and general items such 

as equipment and furniture; was about $517.5 million. This 

decrease of approximately $3.6 million or 0.7% over the prior 

fi scal year was due to asset retirement and depreciation.

Capital Assets (in thousands)  FY 2019 FY 2018

Land  $    3,020  3,020 

Buildings and improvements  50,148  50,756 

Utility lines, machinery, and equipment  862,298  853,588 

Construction work in progress  21,260  13,489 

Accumulated depreciation  (419,235)  (399,731)

Net capital assets  $517,491  521,122 

Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt was about $221.0 million at the end of FY 

2019. This represents a decrease of approximately $12.5 

million or 5.3% compared to the prior fi scal year. The current 

long-term debt due within a year was about $13.0 million 

while noncurrent long-term debt was approximately $208.0 

million. The debt is backed by the revenues of the Utility. 

PWP’s Power Enterprise Fund maintained an “AA” rating 

from Standard and Poor’s and Fitch.

Outstanding Long-Term Debt (in thousands) FY 2019 FY 2018

2009 Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds  $   15,885  19,020 

2010A Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds  9,810  14,435 

2012A Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds  4,955  5,490 

2013A Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds  75,985  77,560 

2016A Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds  114,355  116,960 

Total long-term debt  220,990  233,465 

Current long-term debt  13,005  12,475 

Noncurrent long-term debt  $207,985  220,990 

Requests for Information

This fi nancial report is designed to provide a general overview 

of the Power Fund’s fi nances. Questions concerning information 

provided in this report should be addressed to the Assistant 

General Manager, Finance, Administration and Customer 

Service Business Unit, Pasadena Water and Power, 

150 S. Los Robles Avenue, Suite 200, Pasadena, California 91101. 
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CITY OF PASADENA

WATER ENTERPRISE FUND
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2019

The Management of Pasadena Water and Power (“PWP”), a 

department of the City of Pasadena (“City”) and also referred 

to in this report as “Utility,” off ers the following overview 

and analysis of the basic fi nancial statements of the Water 

Enterprise Fund (“Water Fund”) for the fi scal year ended June 

30, 2019.  We encourage readers to utilize the information 

presented here in conjunction with the accompanying basic 

fi nancial statements. Unless otherwise indicated, all amounts 

are expressed in thousands of dollars.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

Management has elected to provide not only highlights to the 

basic fi nancial statements, but also vital statistics and other 

relevant data and information associated with the Water Fund. 

Because the Utility is a business-like activity of the City of 

Pasadena, an enterprise fund is used to account for its water 

utility operations. Information on City-wide fi nancial results 

is available in the City of Pasadena Comprehensive Annual 

Financial Report as of June 30, 2019.

The Water Fund’s basic fi nancial statements are comprised 

of two components: 1) fi nancial statements, and 2) notes to 

the fi nancial statements. Included as part of the fi nancial 

statements are the Statement of Net Position; Statement 

of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position; and 

Statement of Cash Flows.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of 

the Water Fund’s assets and deferred outfl ows of resources 

and liabilities and deferred infl ows of resources, with the 

diff erence reported as “net position.” Over time, increases or 

decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of 

whether the fi nancial position of the Water Fund is improving 

or deteriorating.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 

Position details the changes in the Water Fund’s net position 

during the past fi scal year. Operating results are recorded 

under the accrual basis of accounting in which all changes 

in net position are reported as underlying events occur, 

regardless of the timing of cash fl ows. Thus, the statement 

refl ects revenues and expenses for some items that will 

generate cash fl ows during future fi scal periods; i.e. accounts 

payable and accounts receivable.

The Statement of Cash Flows presents the fl ow of cash and 

cash equivalents during the last fi scal year, including certain 

restricted amounts.

The Notes to Basic Financial Statements provides additional 

information that is essential to the full understanding of the 

data provided in the basic fi nancial statements.

Financial Highlights

At the end of FY 2019, the Water Fund’s net position, which 

represents assets and deferred outfl ows, exceeded its liabilities

and deferred infl ows by approximately $182.8 million. The net 

position balance includes $140.3 million of the Water Fund’s 

investment in capital assets, less any related debt used to 

acquire those assets, that are still outstanding and $7.7 

million of restricted resources that are subject to external 

restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance 

of $34.8 million represents unrestricted uses in accordance 

with fi nance-related legal requirements. 

The total retail water sold was about 11.5 million billing units, 

a decrease of about 0.6 million billing units or 5.0% compared 

to the prior fi scal year.  A billing unit is equivalent to 748 

gallons of water.  Total operating revenues were approximately 

$60.2 million, a decrease of about $2.4 million or 3.9% 

compared to the prior fi scal year.  Total operating expenses 

were approximately $53.7 million, an increase of about $2.1 

million or 4.2% compared to the prior fi scal year.  Investment 

earnings were approximately $2.1 million, an increase of 

about $1.9 million or 820.3% compared to FY 2018 due to 

strong market performance. Approximately $1.9 million 

was reimbursed by Water Fund to General Fund for cost of 

services provided.  
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Financial Analysis

The Condensed Statement of Net Position for the Water Fund 

is as follows: 

 
(in thousands) FY 2019 FY 2018 Change

Assets 

Current assets  $   65,831 65,011  820 

Noncurrent assets 6,199 5,977  222 

Capital assets 200,338 196,281  4,057 

Total assets 272,368 267,269 5,099

Deferred outfl ows 5,059 6,515 (1,456)

Liabilities 

Current liabilities 11,537 12,819  (1,282)

Noncurrent liabilities 81,987 84,976  (2,989)

Total liabilities 93,524 97,795  (4,271)

Deferred infl ows 1,057  1,413  (356)

Net position

Net investment in capital assets 140,322 132,335  7,987 

Restricted:

  Debt service 6,199 5,977  222 

  Contribution to General Fund 1,544 1,544  -   

Unrestricted 34,781 34,720  61 

Total net position  $182,846  174,576  8,270 

As of June 30, 2019, the Water Fund’s total assets increased 

by nearly $5.1 million or 1.9% primarily due to approximate 

increases of $0.6 million in unrestricted cash and invest-

ments; $4.1 million in capital assets, net of accumulated 

depreciation; and $0.4 million in accounts receivable. Deferred 

outfl ow of resources decreased by about $1.5 million or 22.3% 

compared to the prior fi scal year mainly due to decrease in 

deferred outfl ows related to net pension liability associated 

with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 

No. 68 – Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions 

(“GASB 68”). 

Major capital projects that occurred during FY 2019 include 

the installation of new distribution mains; installation of 

Automatic Meter Read (“AMR”) meters; new installations and 

upgrades to customer water services; updates to the Water 

Master Plan; progress on the Arroyo Seco Canyon to 

rehabilitate stream diversion facilities and increase ground 

water recharge; and other reliability and safety-related 

improvements to the water system.

Total liabilities decreased by approximately $4.3 million or 

4.4% compared to the prior fi scal year. This was mainly due to 

approximate decreases of about $4.0 million in revenue bonds 

payable, and $0.6 million in net pension liability associated with 

GASB 68 and $0.5 million in accounts payable and accrued 

liabilities.  The decreases were off set by approximate increases 

of $0.4 million in unearned revenues and $0.4 million in net 

other postemployment benefi ts (“OPEB”) liability. Deferred 

infl ow of resources decreased by about $0.4 million or 

25.2% compared to the prior fi scal year due to a decrease 

in deferred infl ows related to net pension liability.  

Total net position at the end of the year was about $182.8 

million, an increase of approximately $8.3 million or 4.7% 

compared to the prior fi scal year because of the net income 

from FY 2019. 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 

Position for the Water Fund is as follows:   

  

(in thousands) FY 2019 FY 2018 Change

Operating revenues:

  Sales within City limits $ 37,071  38,958  (1,887)

  Sales outside City limits 7,158  7,442  (284)

  Municipal sales and fi re protection 3,204  2,961  243 

  Capital improvement charge 11,557  12,149  (592)

  Miscellaneous/other revenues 1,190  1,082  108 

Total operating revenues 60,180 62,592  (2,412)

Operating expenses: 

  Purchased water 20,846  21,446  (600)

  Purchased power 2,422  2,640  (218)

  Other operating expenses 10,541  9,694  847 

  Administrative and general 11,511  10,021  1,490 

  Depreciation 8,379  7,751  628 

Total operating expenses 53,699 51,552  2,147 

Operating income 6,481 11,040  (4,559)

Non-operating revenues (expenses): 

  Investment earnings (incl. net change

   in fair market of investments) 2,089  227  1,862 

  Other non-operating revenues (expenses) 2,576  2,919  (343)

  Interest expense  (3,037)  (3,206)  169 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)  1,628  (60)  1,688 

Income before contributions and transfers 8,109 10,980  (2,871)

Contributions and transfers: 

  Capital contributions 2,055  1,721  334 

  Transfers out to City of Pasadena  (1,894)  (1,924)  30 

Changes in net position 8,270 10,777  (2,507)

Net position, beginning of year 174,576  163,799  10,777 

Net position, end of year $182,846  174,576  8,270 
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The Water Fund’s operating revenues for FY 2019 decreased by 

approximately $2.4 million or 3.9% compared to the prior fi scal 

year, mainly due to a decrease of about 0.6 million billing units 

in retail water sales. Sales revenue generated inside city limits 

decreased by approximately $1.9 million or 4.8%, while sales 

revenue generated outside city limits decreased by about $0.3 

million or 3.8%.  Sales revenues from municipal, fi re protection 

and other operating activities increased by approximately $0.3 

million. In addition, Capital Improvement Charge (“CIC”) revenue 

decreased by nearly $0.6 million or 4.9% compared to FY 2018 

mainly due to the decrease in retail water sales. The CIC is a 

volumetric charge.

Investment earnings, including net change in fair market value 

of investments, were approximately $2.1 million, an increase 

by $1.9 million or 820.3% compared to the prior fi scal year due 

to a strong investment market. Capital contributions received 

from developers increased by approximately $0.3 million or 

19.4% due to an increase in customer driven projects.  Other

non-operating revenues, net of non-operating expenses, 

decreased by nearly $0.3 million or 11.8% primarily due to 

decreases in grant funding related to Proposition 84 Integrated 

Regional Water Management and Non-Potable Water project, 

and off set by an increase in groundwater treatment services 

reimbursements from Jet Propulsion Laboratory (“JPL”).

 

Total sources of funds for the FY 2019 Water Fund was about 

$66.9 million, of which approximately $37.1 million or 55% 

represents retail revenues generated inside city limits, $7.2 

million or 11% represents revenues generated outside city 

limits, $11.6 million or 17% represents CIC revenue, and 

nearly $11.0 million or 17% represents other operating 

and non-operating revenues.

Total operating expenses increased by about $2.1 million or 

4.2% compared to FY 2018. Purchased water costs decreased 

by about $0.6 million or 2.8% resulting from decreases in retail 

water sales and off set by rate increases implemented by 

Metropolitan Water District (“MWD”). In FY 2019, PWP purchased 

18,130 acre feet from MWD and other utilities, a 5.7% decrease 

compared to the prior fi scal year. Total purchased water 

expense was about $20.8 million, which represents 31.2% of 

the $66.9 million in total uses of funds.  FY 2019 direct expenses 

related to transmission and distribution, sources of supply, 

pumping, and water treatment increased by about $0.8 million 

or 8.7% to $10.5 million.  This represents 15.8% of the total 

uses of funds in FY 2019.  Purchased power costs associated 

with pumping water decreased slightly by about $0.2 million 

or 8.3% compared to FY 2018.

Depreciation expense was about $8.4 million, an increase of 

$0.6 million or 8.1% compared to the prior fi scal year. Total 

interest expense was approximately $3.0 million, a decrease 

of about $0.2 million or 5.3%.

Reimbursement of cost of services provided by General Fund 

to Water Fund were approximately $1.9 million, similar to FY 

2018. These reimbursements consist of approximately $1.5 

million for the cost of services provided by the City and $0.4 

million for services related to the Hahamongna Watershed Park.  
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration

As of June 30, 2019, the Water Fund’s net utility plant and 

equipment, which includes investments in production, 

transmission, facilities-related distribution, and general items 

such as equipment and furniture, was approximately $200.3 

million, an increase of approximately $4.1 million or 2.1% 

over the prior fi scal year. The increase is primarily attributable 

to an increase in capital assets related to water mains, 

chloramine disinfection facilities, machinery, and equipment.

Capital Assets (in thousands) FY 2019 FY 2018

Land  $     1,578  1,578 

Buildings and improvements  18,160  18,023 

Water mains, machinery and equipment  271,168  258,868 

Construction work in progress  18,584  19,238 

Accumulated depreciation  (109,152)  (101,426)

Net capital assets  $200,338  196,281 

Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt was about $56.1 million at the end of FY 2019.  

This represents a decrease of approximately $3.7 million or 

6.2% compared to the prior fi scal year. The current long-term 

debt due within a year was about $2.5 million while noncurrent 

long-term debt was approximately $53.6 million. The debt was 

backed by the revenue of the Utility. PWP’s Water Enterprise 

Fund maintained an “AA+” rating from Standard and Poor’s 

and Fitch.

Outstanding Long-Term Debt (in thousands) FY 2019  FY 2018 

2010A & B Water Revenue Bonds  $26,165  26,870 

2011A Water Revenue/Refunding Bonds  16,275  18,765 

2017A Water Revenue/Refunding Bonds  13,620  14,120 

Total long-term debt  56,060  59,755 

Current long-term debt  2,475  3,695 

Noncurrent long-term debt  $53,585  56,060 

Requests for Information

This fi nancial report is designed to provide a general overview 

of the Water Fund’s fi nances. Questions concerning information 

provided in this report should be addressed to the Assistant 

General Manager, Finance, Administration and Customer 

Service Business Unit, Pasadena Water and Power, 

150 S. Los Robles Avenue, Suite 200, Pasadena, California 91101.  

FINANCIAL SECTION 
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CITY OF PASADENA
Water and Power Enterprise Funds

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2019

 Light and Power   Water    
Assets
Current assets: 

Cash and investments (note 2)  $225,544,276  48,677,649 

Accounts receivable, net (note 3)  23,326,683  8,667,265 

Notes receivable - current (note 4 and 9)  6,014,167  -   

Inventories  17,475,387  8,130,931 

Prepaids and other assets  342,753  355,476 

Total current assets  272,703,266  65,831,321 

Noncurrent assets: 

Restricted assets - cash and investments 

To fi nance stranded investments (note 9)  65,911,092  -   

Cash and investments  18,318,639  2,263 

Cash with fi scal agent   4,946  6,196,944 

Notes receivable (notes 4 and 9)  14,630,000  -   

Advances to other funds (note 6)  440,000  -   

Deposit with Independent System Operator (ISO)  200,000  -   

Prepaid long-term assets  12,089,412  -   

Capital assets (note 5)  936,726,610  309,489,951 

Less accumulated depreciation  (419,235,258)  (109,152,334)

Net capital assets  517,491,352  200,337,617 

Total noncurrent assets  629,085,441  206,536,824 

Total assets  901,788,707  272,368,145 

Deferred outfl ows of resources
Deferred charges - bond refunding (note 10)  1,982,350  264,645 

Deferred outfl ows related to net pension liability (note 10)  11,063,426  4,624,303 

Deferred outfl ows related to net OPEB liability (note 10)  342,099  169,780 

Total deferred outfl ows of resources  13,387,875  5,058,728 

Liabilities
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payables and accrued liabilities  9,633,736  6,870,122 

Deposits  2,887,799  458,866 

Unearned revenues  5,080,928  1,733,185 

Revenue bonds - current (notes 7 and 8)  13,005,000  2,475,000 

Total current liabilities  30,607,463  11,537,173 

Noncurrent liabilities: 

Net pension liability  57,067,586  19,907,147 

Net OPEB liability  8,832,219  4,273,874 

Revenue bonds - noncurrent (notes 7 and 8)  234,310,058  57,805,709 

Total noncurrent liabilities  300,209,863  81,986,730 

Total liabilities  330,817,326  93,523,903 

Deferred infl ows of resources
Deferred infl ows related to net pension liability (note 10)  2,898,205  1,023,534 

Deferred infl ows related to net OPEB liability (note 10)  70,721  33,862 

Total deferred infl ows of resources  2,968,926  1,057,396 

Net position
Net investment in capital assets  272,158,644  140,321,553 

Restricted: 

Debt service  18,225,144  6,199,207 

Contribution to General Fund  17,314,625  1,544,138 

Stranded investments (note 9)  89,251,747  -   

Other purposes  5,187,779  -   

Unrestricted  179,252,391  34,780,676 

Total net position  $581,390,330  182,845,574 

 See accompanying notes to the basic fi nancial statements 
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CITY OF PASADENA
Water and Power Enterprise Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

 Light and Power   Water    
Operating revenues: 
 Charges for services:

   Light and power operating revenue  $  68,549,009  -   

   Recovered transmission and energy cost  104,360,427  -   

   Public benefi t charge  7,118,076  -   

   Sales to other utilities  10,714,292  -   

   CAISO-PTO*  14,945,416  -   

   Water sales within City limits  -    37,070,874 

   Water sales outside City limits  -    7,157,792 

   Municipal sales and fi re protection  -    3,204,345 

   Capital improvement charge  -    11,557,310 

   Miscellaneous others  12,367,578  1,190,343 

       Total operating revenues  218,054,798  60,180,664 

 Operating expenses: 
   Fuel - retail  5,446,341  -   

   Fuel - wholesale  4,491,207  -   

   Purchased power - retail  91,666,490  2,422,052 

   Purchased power - wholesale  1,952,622  -   

   Purchased water  -    20,845,506 

   Other production costs  9,358,309  -   

   Hydro-electric power generation  77,886  -   

   Sources of supply    -    1,694,478 

   Pumping  -    999,608 

   Water treatment  -    2,334,079 

   Transmission and distribution  18,586,461  5,515,241 

   Administrative and general expenses  15,072,080  7,795,579 

   Customer and commercial expenses  8,982,933  3,715,478 

   Depreciation  31,701,792  8,378,869 

       Total operating expenses  187,336,121  53,700,890 

       Operating income (loss)  30,718,677  6,479,774 

Non-operating revenues (expenses): 
   Intergovernmental revenues  100,000  899,437 

   Interest revenues  12,925,055  2,089,266 

   Interest expense  (9,537,737)  (3,036,734)

   Gain (loss) on disposal of assets  (1,101,061)  (12,724)

   Other non-operating revenues (expenses)  1,656,622  1,689,129 

       Total non-operating revenues (expenses)  4,042,879  1,628,374 

       Income (loss) before transfers and contributions  34,761,556  8,108,148 

   Capital contributions  1,559,783  2,055,339 

   Transfers in from City of Pasadena (note 11)  4,194,083  -   

   Transfers out to City of Pasadena (note 11)  (17,608,813)  (1,894,138)

        Changes in Net Position  22,906,609  8,269,349 

Net position at beginning of year  558,483,721  174,576,225 

Net position at end of year  $581,390,330  182,845,574 

*California Independent System Operator - Participating Transmission Owner

 See accompanying notes to the basic fi nancial statements 

FINANCIAL SECTION 
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CITY OF PASADENA
Water and Power Enterprise Funds

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

 Light and Power   Water    

Cash fl ows from operating activities:

Cash received from customers  $218,507,226  59,929,394 

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services  (117,038,276)  (29,177,485)

Cash payments to employees for services  (29,784,082)  (11,915,176)

Cash payments to other funds for services  (5,818,045)  (3,489,954)

Miscellaneous revenues (expenses)  1,656,619  1,689,129 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities  67,523,442  17,035,908 

Cash fl ows from non-capital fi nancing activities:

Cash transfer in  4,194,083  -   

Cash transfer out  (17,608,813)  (1,894,138)

Advance (to)/from other funds  110,000  -   

Intergovernmental revenues  100,000  899,437 

Net cash provided by (used for) non-capital fi nancing activities  (13,204,730)  (994,701)

Cash fl ows from capital and related fi nancing activities:

Acquisition and construction of capital assets  (29,310,235)  (12,727,413)

Proceeds from sales of capital assets  10,194  52,282 

Capital contributions  2,700,230  2,436,152 

Principal paid on debt  (12,475,000)  (3,695,000)

Interest paid on debt  (10,777,876)  (3,286,879)

Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related fi nancing activities  (49,852,687)  (17,220,858)

Cash fl ows from investing activities:

Purchase of investments  -    (147,957)

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments  3,305,228  -   

Investment earnings  12,311,622  2,001,003 

Payments received from loans made to suppliers  4,353,333  -   

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities  19,970,183  1,853,046 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  24,436,208  673,395 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  205,929,503  48,178,427 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $230,365,711  48,851,822 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to amounts 

 reported on the Statement of Net Position:

Cash and investments  $225,544,276  48,677,649 

Restricted:

Stranded Investments  65,911,092  -   

Cash and investments  18,318,639  2,263 

Cash with fi scal agent  4,946  6,196,944 

Less non-cash equivalents  (79,413,242)  (6,025,034)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $230,365,711  48,851,822 
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CITY OF PASADENA
Water and Power Enterprise Funds

Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

 Light and Power   Water    

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash

 provided by (used for) operating activities:

Operating income (loss)  $30,718,677  6,479,774 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash

provided by (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation  31,701,792  8,378,869 

Miscellaneous revenues (expenses)  1,656,619  1,689,129 

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable  358,891  (264,069)

Increase (decrease) in allowance for uncollectible accounts  93,537  12,799 

(Increase) decrease in inventories  (668,660)  132,162 

(Increase) decrease in prepaids and other assets  1,413,031  (13,190)

(Increase) decrease in deferred outfl ows  2,957,798  1,048,881 

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities  (482,833)  (75,223)

Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue  606,119  - 

Increase (decrease) in deposits payable  315,755  87,497 

Increase (decrease) in deferred infl ows  (659,729)  (265,745)

Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligations  1,212,606  283,725 

Increase (decrease) in net pension obligations  (1,700,161)  (458,701)

 Total adjustments  36,804,765  10,556,134 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities  $67,523,442  17,035,908 

Non-cash investing, capital, and fi nancing activities:

Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets  $(1,101,061)  (12,724)

Amortization of deferred charges  (454,932)  (66,161)

Amortization of premiums (discounts)  773,592  301,937 

Changes in fair value of investments  6,209,912  1,003,766 

See accompanying notes to the basic fi nancial statements

FINANCIAL SECTION 
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(1) Summary of Signifi cant Accounting Policies

The following is a summary of signifi cant accounting policies of the City of Pasadena (“City”) as they pertain to the City’s Water and 

Power Enterprise Funds. The basic fi nancial statements presented represent the respective balances of the funds and the results 

of operations for the funds and are not meant to represent the entirety of the accruals that are borne by the City that relate to the 

Pasadena Water and Power Department.

(a) Basis of Accounting

The City’s Water and Power Enterprise Funds are used to account for the construction, operation, and maintenance of the City-owned 

water and power utilities. Enterprise Funds are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when 

they are earned and expenses are recognized when the related goods or services are delivered. Enterprise Funds are presented 

using the economic resources measurement focus. This means that all assets and all liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) 

associated with their activity are included on their balance sheets. Enterprise Fund operating statements present increases 

(revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position.

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services, and producing and delivering goods in connection with 

an Enterprise Fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Water and Power Funds are charges to 

customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for the Enterprise Funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative 

expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this defi nition are reported as non-operating 

revenues and expenses.

Amounts paid to acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets in the fi nancial statements. Proceeds of long-term debt are recorded 

as a liability in the fi nancial statements. Amounts paid to reduce long-term indebtedness are reported as a reduction of the related 

liability.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are combined in a fund, expenses are considered to be paid fi rst from restricted 

resources, and then from unrestricted resources.

Financial reporting is based upon all Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) pronouncements, as well as the Financial 

Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Boards (“APB”) Opinions, and Accounting 

Research Bulletins that were issued on or before November 30, 1989 that do not confl ict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. 

FASB Pronouncements issued after November 1989 are not followed in the preparation of the accompanying fi nancial statements.

(b) Major Funds

The accompanying fi nancial statements report the following major funds:

Light and Power Fund – Used to account for the operations of the City’s electric utility; a self-supporting activity that renders 

services on a user-charge basis to residents and businesses as prescribed by the City Charter. 

Water Fund – Used to account for the operations of the City’s water utility; a self-supporting activity that renders services on 

a user-charge basis to residents and businesses as prescribed by the City Charter.

(c) Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash fl ows, cash equivalents are defi ned as short-term, highly liquid investments that are both 

readily convertible to known amounts of cash or so near their maturity that they present insignifi cant risk of changes in value 

because of changes in interest rates. Cash equivalents also represent the Enterprise Fund’s share in the City’s cash and investment 

pool. Cash equivalents have an original maturity date of three months or less from the date of purchase.

Notes to the 
Basic Financial Statements
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(d) Cash and Investments

Investments are reported in the accompanying fi nancial statements at fair value based on quoted market prices, except for certain 

certifi cates of deposit, money market investments that mature within one year of acquisition and investment contracts that are 

reported at cost because they are not transferable, have terms that are not aff ected by changes in market interest rates, and 

provided that the fair value of those investments is not signifi cantly aff ected by the impairment of the credit standing of the issuer 

or by other factors.

Both realized and unrealized changes in fair value that occur during a fi scal year are recognized and recorded as net changes in 

fair value of investments. Investment earnings include interest earnings and all other investment income.

(e) Inventories

Inventories held by the Light and Power Fund and Water Fund are carried at the lower of weighted average cost or market computed 

on a fi rst-in /fi rst-out basis depending on the type of inventory.  There are three types of inventory, those held for consumption in 

operations, those capitalized, and inventory held for resale. Inventory items are accounted for as an expenditure or expense when 

consumed or sold. 

(f) Advances to Other Funds

Long-term interfund advances are recorded as a receivable and as reserved fund balance by the advancing governmental fund.

(g) Prepaids

Certain payments to vendors refl ect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid assets.

(h) Restricted Cash and Investments

The City considers all cash and investments from bond proceeds in Enterprise Funds as restricted. The City is legally mandated 

under bond indentures to use these resources only for the purposes specifi ed. Also included as restricted cash and investments 

are amounts accumulated in the Light and Power Fund for the purpose of meeting future contractual commitments including the 

Stranded Investment Reserve (“SIR”) Utilization Plan which is discussed under Note 9 – Stranded Investments.

(i) Capital Assets

Capital assets greater than $10,000 are capitalized and recorded at cost or at the estimated fair value of the assets at the time of 

acquisition where complete historical records have not been maintained. Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated 

fair market value at the date of the contribution. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the 

asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. 

Depreciation has been provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the asset. A summary of the 

estimated useful lives of capital assets is as follows:

 

(j) Net Pension Liability

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outfl ows and infl ows of resources related to pensions, and pension 

expense, information about the fi duciary net position and additions to/deductions from the fi duciary net position have been determined 

on the same basis as they are reported by the CalPERS Financial Offi  ce, and are in accordance with the implementation of GASB 

Statement No. 68.  Investments are reported at fair value.  CalPERS-audited fi nancial statements are publicly available reports 

that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under Forms and Publications. 

FINANCIAL SECTION 

                 Light and Power Fund   

Production Plant 20 to 40 years

Transmission Plant 25 to 40 years

Distribution Plant 20 to 40 years

General Plant 10 to 40 years

Equipment   4 to 10 years
 
 

                           Water Fund 

Source of Supply 20 to 50 years

Pumping Plant 10 to 50 years

Treatment Plant 10 to 20 years

Transmission and 

Distribution Plant 10 to 80 years

General Plant   6 to 50 years

Equipment   4 to 10 years

N O T E S  T O  T H E  B A S I C  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S  |  F o r  t h e  F i s c a l  Y e a r  E n d e d  J u n e  3 0 ,  2 0 1 9
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(k) Postemployment Benefi ts Other Than Pensions

The City provides other postemployment benefi ts (OPEB) as part of the total compensation off ered to attract and retain the services 

of qualifi ed employees. In accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 75, the City requires accrual accounting for 

the expensing of OPEB. The expense is generally accrued over the working career of employees and are liquidated by the Benefi ts 

Internal Service Fund.

(l) Bond Premiums/Discounts/Issuance Costs

Issuance costs are recognized during the current period.  Any bond premiums and discounts are capitalized and amortized over the 

life of the bonds.  Bond proceeds are reported as other fi nancing sources net of any applicable discount or premium. 

(m) Deferred Outfl ows and Infl ows of Resources

Pursuant to GASB Statements No. 63 and 65, the City recognizes deferred outfl ows and infl ows of resources.  A deferred outfl ow of 

resources is defi ned as a consumption of net position by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period.  A deferred 

infl ow of resources is defi ned as an acquisition of net position by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period.

(n) Use of Estimates

The preparation of fi nancial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that aff ect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of 

contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the fi nancial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures. 

The City has made certain estimates and assumptions relating to the revenues due and expenditures incurred through fi scal year 

end, collectability of its receivables, the valuation of property held for resale, the useful lives of the capital assets, and the ultimate 

outcome of claims and judgments. Actual results may diff er from those estimates and assumptions.

(o) Future Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements

GASB Statements listed below will be implemented in future fi nancial statements (note all eff ective dates refl ect that the provisions 

of these statements are eff ective for fi nancial statements periods beginning after the date stated):

Management is in the process of evaluating the impact of the statements to be implemented for the fi scal year ended June 30, 2020 

and beyond.  For the fi scal year ended June 30, 2020, management does not anticipate any signifi cant impact from the new 

statements on the fi nancial statements.

 Statement   Eff ective for Fiscal Year
 No.  Title  Beginning On or After

 84 Fiduciary Activities December 15, 2018

 87 Leases December 15, 2019

 89 Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before  December 15, 2019
  the end of a Construction Period 

 90 Majority Equity Interests - an amendment of  December 15, 2018
  GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 61 

 91 Conduit Debt Obligations December 15, 2020
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(2) Cash and Investments
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2019 are classifi ed in the accompanying fi nancial statements as follows:

 

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City’s Investment Policy

The table below identifi es the investment types that are authorized for the City by the California Government Code and the City’s 

investment policy. The table also identifi es certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the City’s investment policy, if 

more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. This table does not address investments 

of debt proceeds held by bond trustee that are governed by the provisions of debt agreements of the City, rather than the general 

provisions of the California Government Code or the City’s investment policy. 

FINANCIAL SECTION 

 Light and   
 Power Fund  Water Fund 
    
Statement of net position:    
 Cash and investments $225,544,276   48,677,649 
 Restricted cash and investments:     
  To fi nance stranded investments 65,911,092  - 
  Other restricted cash and investments  18,323,585   6,199,207
    
   Total cash and investments $309,778,953    54,876,856  
    
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2019 consist of the following:    
    
 Cash on hand                                                          $             6,800   500 
 Investment in the City of Pasadena Pool 225,537,476   48,677,149
 Investments                                                        84,234,677   6,199,207 
    
   Total cash and investments  $  309,778,953   54,876,856 
 

  Authorized By  Maximum Maximum
Investment Types Investment Maximum Percentage  Investment
Authorized by State Law Policy Maturity* of Portfolio* in One Issuer*
      

Local Agency Bonds** Yes 5 years None None

US Treasury Obligations** Yes 5 years None None

US Agency Securities** Yes 5 years None None

Banker's Acceptance Yes 180 days 40% 30%

Commercial Paper Yes 270 days 15% 10%

Negotiable Certifi cates of Deposit Yes 5 years 25% None

Repurchase Agreement Yes 1 year None None

Reverse Repurchase Agreements Yes 92 days 20% of base value None

Medium Term Notes Yes 5 years 30% 5%

Mutual Funds Yes N/A 20% 10%

Money Market Mutual Funds Yes N/A 20% 10%

Mortgage Pass-Through Securities Yes 5 years 20% None

County Pooled Investment Fund Yes N/A None None

Local Agency Investment Fund Yes N/A None None

JPA Pools (other investment pools) Yes N/A None None

* Based on state law requirements or investment policy requirements, whichever is more restrictive    

**With the exception of the Power Reserve and Bond Reserve Funds with consent of the bond insurers, these type of investment 

   can be held for more than fi ve years.
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Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

Investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee are governed 

by provisions of the debt agreements, rather than by the general 

provisions of the California Government Code or the City’s investment 

policy. The table on the right identifi es the investment types that are 

authorized for investments held by bond trustee. The table also 

identifi es certain provisions of these debt agreements that address 

interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. 

 

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk related to changes in market interest rates that will adversely aff ect the fair value of an investment. 

Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the fair value of the investment is more susceptible to changes in market 

interest rates.  One of the ways that the City manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter 

and longer term investments, and by timing cash fl ows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming 

close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash fl ow and liquidity needed for operations. 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City’s investments (including investments held by bond trustee) to market 

interest rate fl uctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the City’s investments by maturity:

 

  Maximum
Authorized Investment Type Maturity

US Treasury Obligations  None

US Agency Securities  None

Banker's Acceptance  360 days

Commercial Paper  270 days

Money Market Mutual Funds  N/A

Investment Contracts  20-30 years

Pre-refunded Municipal Bonds  None

Repurchase Agreements  1 year

Local Agency Investment Fund  N/A

General Obligation Bonds  None

Light and Power Fund       Remaining Maturity (in Months)   

   12 Months  13 to 24  25 to 60  More Than
Investment Type Total  or Less  Months  Months  60 Months
     

Corporate Bonds $    3,967,701   -  993,243  2,974,458   - 

Federal Agency Securities  73,264,292   -   31,503,452   22,903,086   18,857,754 

Municipal Bond  3,966,691   1,959,471   -   -   2,007,220 

Investment in City Pool  225,537,476   225,537,476   -   -   - 

Money Market Fund  2,849,901   2,849,901   -   -   - 

State Investment Pool  181,146   181,146   -   -   - 

Held by Bond Trustee:      

    Money Market Funds  4,946   4,946   -   -   - 
    

     Total  $309,772,153   230,532,940   32,496,695   25,877,544   20,864,974  

      

      

    

Water Fund   Remaining Maturity (in Months) 

   12 Months  13 to 24  25 to 60  More Than
Investment Type Total  or Less  Months  Months  60 Months  

    

Investment in City Pool   $  48,677,149   48,677,149   -   -   -

State Investment Pool  2,263   2,263   -   -   - 

Held by Bond Trustee:      

 Federal Agency Securities 6,025,035   1,859,386   2,985,330   1,180,319   - 

 Money Market Funds 171,909   171,909   -   -   - 

 Total  $  54,876,356   50,710,707   2,985,330   1,180,319   - 
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Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk related to an issuer of an investment that will not fulfi ll its obligation to the holder of the investment. 

This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Presented below is the 

minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California Government Code, the City’s investment policy or debt agreements, 

and the actual rating as of year-end for each investment type.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the City contains no 

limitations on the amount that can be invested 

in any one issuer beyond that stipulated by the 

California Government Code. Investments in any 

one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities, 

mutual funds, and external investment pools) 

that represent 5% or more of total Entity 

investments are on the table to the right:

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk 

that, in the event of the failure of a depository 

fi nancial institution, a government will not be 

able to recover its deposits or recover collateral 

securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the 

failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or 

collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code and the City’s investment policy do not 

contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the 

following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a fi nancial institution secure deposits made by state or 

local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so 

Light and Power Fund  Minimum        Rating as of Year-End   
   Legal    
Investment Type Total Rating AAA Aa  A Not Rated  

  

Corporate Bonds  $    3,967,701  A  2,974,458   993,243   -   - 

Federal Agency Securities  73,264,292  N/A  73,264,292   -   -   - 

Municipal Bond  3,966,691  N/A  1,959,471   2,007,220   -   - 

Investment in City Pool  225,537,476  N/A  -   -   -   225,537,476 

Money Market Funds  2,849,901  N/A  -   -   -   2,849,901 

State Investment Pool  181,146  N/A  -   -   -   181,146 

Held by Bond Trustee:       

   Money Market Funds  4,946    4,946   -   -   - 
        

     Total  $309,772,153    78,203,167   3,000,463   -   228,568,523  

        

        

  

Water Fund   Minimum         Rating as of Year-End    
    Legal    
Investment Type Total Rating  AAA  Aa   A  Not Rated  

  

Investment in City Pool  $   48,677,149  N/A  -   -   -   48,677,149 

State Investment Pool  2,263  N/A  -   -   -   2,263 

Held by Bond Trustee:       

     Federal Agency Securities  6,025,035  N/A  6,025,035   -   -   - 

     Money Market Funds  171,909  A  171,909   -   -   - 
        

     Total  $   54,876,356    6,196,944   -   -   48,679,412 

        

N/A Not Applicable

Light and Power Fund    

  Reported
Issuer Investment Types Amount
   

Federal Farm Credit Bank Federal Agency Securities  $31,156,330 

Federal Home Loan Bank Federal Agency Securities  19,439,577 

Federal National Mortgage Association Federal Agency Securities  17,693,144 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. Federal Agency Securities  4,975,240 

    

Water Fund   

  Reported
Issuer Investment Types Amount
   

Federal National Mortgage Association Federal Agency Securities  $  2,985,330 

Federal Farm Credit Bank Federal Agency Securities  1,859,386 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. Federal Agency Securities  1,180,319

FINANCIAL SECTION 
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waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total 

amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows fi nancial institutions to secure City deposits by pledging fi rst trust 

deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. 

For investments identifi ed herein as held by bond trustee, the bond trustee selects the investment under the terms of the applicable 

trust agreement, acquires the investment, and holds the investment on behalf of the reporting government.

Investment in State Investment Pool

The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (“LAIF”) that is regulated by the California Government Code 

under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value of the City’s investment in this pool is reported in the 

accompanying fi nancial statements at amounts based upon the City’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire 

LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting 

records maintained by LAIF, which is recorded on an amortized cost basis. 

Investment in City of Pasadena Investment Pool

The Water and Power Enterprise Funds are voluntary participants in the City of Pasadena’s investment pool managed by the City of 

Pasadena. This pool is governed by and under the regulatory oversight of the Investment Policy adopted by the City Council of the City 

of Pasadena. The Water and Power Enterprise Funds have not adopted an investment policy separate from that of the City of Pasadena. 

The fair value of the Water and Power Enterprise Funds’ investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying fi nancial statements 

at amounts based upon the Water and Power Enterprise Funds’ pro-rata share of the fair value calculated by the City for the entire City 

portfolio. This pool is unrated. Further information about the composition, maturities, and concentrations associated with this pool can 

be found in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City.
 

Fair Value Hierarchy

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting 

principles.  The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset or liability.  Level 1 inputs 

are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are signifi cant other observable inputs. Level 3 inputs are 

signifi cant unobservable inputs.  The City utilizes a third party software that obtains live data from active Bloomberg prices to 

determine the fair market value of investments held.

The City has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2019:

Light and Power Fund     

   Level  

Measure by Fair Value 1  2  3  Total
     

Corporate Bonds  $              -   3,967,701   -   3,967,701 

Federal Agency Securities  -   73,264,292   -   73,264,292 

Municipal Bond  -   3,966,691   -   3,966,691 

Investment in City Pool  -   225,537,476   -   225,537,476 

Money Market Funds  -   2,849,901   -   2,849,901 

State Investment Pool  -   181,146   -   181,146 

Held by Bond Trustee:     

    Money Market Funds  -   4,946   -   4,946 

    Total  $              -   309,772,153   -   309,772,153  

     

Water Fund     

   Level  

Measure by Fair Value 1  2  3  Total
     

Investment in City Pool  $              -   48,677,149   -   48,677,149 

State Investment Pool  -   2,263   -   2,263 

Held by Bond Trustee:     

    Federal Agency Securities  -   6,025,035   -   6,025,035 

    Money Market Funds  -   171,909   -   171,909 

    Total  $              -   54,876,356   -   54,876,356 
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(3) Accounts Receivable 
As of June 30, 2019, the accounts receivable 

are categorized in part on the table to the right: 

 

(4) Notes Receivable 
In January 2009, Light and Power utilized $80.0 

million of Reserves for Stranded Investment and 

in return received Subordinated Notes totaling 

$70.0 million from Intermountain Power Agency 

(“IPA”) to defease some of IPA’s outstanding debt 

service requirement for Intermountain Power 

Project (“IPP”) bonds. These notes have various 

maturity dates, and the proceeds, when mature, 

will be used to stabilize future energy costs. 

The balance of the notes as of June 30, 2019 

is $20,644,167

(5) Capital Assets 
Capital asset activities for the year ended June 30, 2019 are as follows:

  Light and  Water 
 Power Fund  Fund 
   

Accounts receivable  $     576,603   330,101 

Accrued revenue receivable  13,576,392   5,313,808 

Interest receivable  1,403,579   300,171 

Utility receivable  8,544,171   2,938,313 

   

  24,100,745   8,882,393   

Less: Allowance for uncollectible amounts  (774,062)  (215,128)

   

Total  $23,326,683   8,667,265 

   Balance at    Transfers and  Balance at 
Light and Power Fund  June 30, 2018  Additions   Deletions  Adjustments  June 30, 2019
         

Depreciable assets:        

  Buildings and improvements  $  50,755,774   -   (1,275,402)  667,661   50,148,033 

  Utility lines, machinery and        

    equipment  853,588,046   282,114   (12,098,042)  20,525,932   862,298,050 

         

Total cost of depreciable assets  904,343,820   282,114   (13,373,444)  21,193,593   912,446,083 

  

Less accumulated depreciation:        

  Buildings and improvements  (16,188,085)  (1,394,595)  1,001,753   -   (16,580,927)

  Utility lines, machinery and        

    equipment  (383,542,966)  (30,307,197)  11,195,832   -   (402,654,331)

         

Total accumulated depreciation  (399,731,051)  (31,701,792)  12,197,585   -   (419,235,258)

         

Net depreciable assets  504,612,769   (31,419,678)  (1,175,859)  21,193,593   493,210,825 

    

Capital assets not depreciated:        

 

  Land  3,019,553   -   -   -   3,019,553 

  Construction in progress  13,489,397   29,183,676   (218,506)  (21,193,593)  21,260,974 

         

Total cost of non-depreciable assets  16,508,950   29,183,676   (218,506)  (21,193,593)  24,280,527 

         

Capital assets, net  $521,121,719   (2,236,002)  (1,394,365)  -     517,491,352 

         

During the year, the Light and Power Fund received proceeds of $10,194 from the disposal of capital assets     

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2019 was $31,701,792.       

A portion of the interest expense for bonds issues were capitalized and included as part of the costs  of capital assets for the year 

ended June 30, 2019:  

  Interest Expense  Amount Capitalized     

Light and Power Fund $10,691,454   160,935     

  

FINANCIAL SECTION 
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(6) Advances To Other Funds 
On May 14, 2012, City Council authorized a loan of $1,100,000 from Light and Power Fund of Pasadena Water and Power (“PWP”) 

to Public Works Department (“Public Works”) of the City and appropriated it to the Fiscal Year 2013 Capital Improvement Program 

(“CIP”) Budget for the repair and/or replacement of existing street lighting system CIP projects. Public Works agreed to repay the 

loan to PWP in ten equal annual installments of $110,000 each on January 31 of each year starting on January 31, 2014 and 

ending on January 31, 2023. The ending balance as of June 30, 2019 is $440,000.

  Balance at    Transfers and Balance at  
Water Fund  June 30, 2018  Additions   Deletions  Adjustments  June 30, 2019  

        

Depreciable assets:      

  Buildings and improvements  $  18,023,256   -   -   136,938   18,160,194  

  Utility lines, machinery and       

  equipment  258,867,773   1,459,051   (1,608,466)  12,449,576   271,167,934  

        

Total cost of depreciable assets  276,891,029   1,459,051   (1,608,466)  12,586,514   289,328,128  

        

Less accumulated depreciation:       

  Buildings and improvements  (4,180,963)  (770,491)  -   -   (4,951,454) 

  Utility lines, machinery and       

    equipment  (97,244,561)  (7,608,378)  652,059   -   (104,200,880)  

        

Total accumulated depreciation  (101,425,524)  (8,378,869)  652,059   -   (109,152,334)  

        

Net depreciable assets  175,465,505   (6,919,818)  (956,407)  12,586,514   180,175,794   

        

Capital assets not depreciated:       

  Land  1,577,527   -   -   -   1,577,527   

  Construction in progress  19,238,444   12,500,466   (568,100)  (12,586,514)  18,584,296   

        

Total cost of non-depreciable assets  20,815,971   12,500,466   (568,100)  (12,586,514)  20,161,823   

        

Capital assets, net  $196,281,476   5,580,648   (1,524,507)  -     200,337,617   

        

    

During the year, the Water Fund received proceeds of $52,282 from the disposal of capital assets    

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2019 was $ 8,378,869       

No interest expense for bonds issues were capitalized and included as part of the costs  of capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2019:  

          

  Interest Expense  Amount Capitalized    

Water  Fund $3,272,510     -        
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(7) Changes in Long-Term Debt 
Changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2019 are as follows:

  Balance at   Balance at Due Within  Due in More
Light and Power Fund June 30, 2018 Additions Reductions June 30, 2019 One Year   Than One Year  

Revenue bonds:   

   2009 Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds $  19,020,000   -   (3,135,000)  15,885,000   3,260,000   12,625,000 

   2010A Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds  14,435,000   -   (4,625,000)  9,810,000   4,810,000   5,000,000 

   2012A Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds  5,490,000   -   (535,000)  4,955,000   550,000   4,405,000 

   2013A Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds  77,560,000   -   (1,575,000)  75,985,000   1,650,000   74,335,000 

   2016A Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds  116,960,000   -   (2,605,000)  114,355,000   2,735,000   111,620,000 

   Bond Premiums/(Discounts)  27,772,772   -   (1,447,714)  26,325,058   -   26,325,058 

   Total Light and Power Fund Long-Term Liabilities  $261,237,772   -   (13,922,714)  247,315,058   13,005,000   234,310,058 

 

  Balance at   Balance at Due Within  Due in More
Water Fund June 30, 2018 Additions Reductions June 30, 2019 One Year   Than One Year  

Revenue bonds:       

   2010A Water Revenue Bonds (Taxable Build America)  $25,425,000   -   -   25,425,000   -   25,425,000 

   2010B Water Revenue Bonds (Tax-Exempt)  1,445,000   -   (705,000)  740,000   740,000   - 

   2011A Water Revenue Refunding Bonds   18,765,000   -   (2,490,000)  16,275,000   1,210,000   15,065,000 

   2017A Water Revenue Refunding Bonds   14,120,000   -   (500,000)  13,620,000   525,000   13,095,000 

   Bond Premiums/(Discounts)  4,522,646   -   (301,937)  4,220,709   -   4,220,709 

   Total Water Fund Long-Term Liabilities  $64,277,646   -   (3,996,937)  60,280,709   2,475,000   57,805,709 

(8) Revenue Bonds
 Outstanding at
Light and Power Fund  June 30, 2019
  

2009 Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds
On November 24, 2009, the City issued $40,655,000 of 2009 Electric Revenue/Refunding 

Bonds to advance refund a portion of the City’s outstanding 1998 Electric Revenue /Refunding 

Bonds and pay the costs of issuance of the 2009 Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds. The 

refunding has generated a net present value savings of $3.62 million or 8.33% of the refunded 

bonds. Interest is payable semi-annually on February 1 and August 1, commencing 

February 1, 2010. The rate of interest varies from 4.0% to 5.0% per annum. Principal is payable 

in annual installments ranging from $2,160,000 to $3,510,000 commencing August 1, 2011 and 

ending August 1, 2024. This debt issue is subject to a reserve requirement in conjunction

with non-subordinate (parity) debt issued by the City. The City is in compliance with the

revenue rate covenant requiring net income of the electric system to be at least equal to 

1.10 times the amount necessary to pay principal and interest on the bonds and all other 

parity bonds. This refunding was undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over 

the next 15 years by $5,002,513 and has resulted in an economic gain of $3,621,076. $   15,885,000
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2010A Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds
On August 3, 2010, the City issued $36,320,000 of 2010A Series Electric Revenue/Refunding

Bonds, to refund a portion of the outstanding 2002 Electric Revenue Bonds and pay the 

issuance costs of the 2010 Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds. The refunding has generated 

a net present value savings of $3.18 million or 8.9% of the refunded bonds. Interest is payable 

semi-annually on June 1 and December 1 commencing December 1, 2010 at rates varying

from 2.0% to 4.0% per annum. Principal is payable in annual installments ranging from 

$180,000 to $5,000,000 commencing June 1, 2011 and ending June 1, 2021. This debt issue is 

subject to a reserve requirement in conjunction with non-subordinate (parity) debt issued by 

the City. The City is in compliance with the revenue rate covenant requiring net income of the 

electric system to be at least equal to 1.10 times the amount necessary to pay principal and 

interest on the bonds and all other parity bonds. This refunding was undertaken to reduce total 

debt service payments over the next 11 years by $4.19 million and has resulted in an economic 

gain of $3.18 million. 9,810,000

2012A Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds
On August 6, 2012, the City Council approved the issuance of Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds, 

2012A Series to partially refi nance the current outstanding 2002 bonds and fully refund the 

outstanding 2003 bonds in the amount of up to $15 million.  On September 24, 2012, the City 

sold $11,780,000 Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2012A Series on a competitive basis.  The 

purpose of the refunding was purely for economic reasons.  The City realized a present value 

savings of $1.1 million or 10.15% present value savings rate.  The true interest cost on the 

fi nancing was 1.54%. 4,955,000

2013A Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds
On September 30, 2013 approved issuance of up to $85 million on the Electric Revenue 

Refunding Bonds, 2013A Series to fully refund the outstanding 2002 bonds, fund a Parity 

Reserve Fund, and to fi nance a portion of the costs of acquisition and construction of certain 

improvements to the Electrical System.  On December 3, 2013, the City sold $80,485,000 

Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2013A Series on a competitive basis.  The City realized a 

present value savings of $330,000.  The true interest cost on the fi nancing was 4.74%. 75,985,000

2016A Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds
On December 1, 2016, the City issued the Electric Revenue /Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A 

(2016A Revenue Bonds) in the amount of $119,440,000 to advance refund the City’s 2008 Electric 

Revenue Bonds, repay the 2015 Line of Credit with Bank of America, pay the cost of issuance 

of the 2016A Revenue Bonds and to fund improvements to the City’s Electrical System.  The 

rates of interest vary from 4.00% to 5.00% payable semi-annually on December 1 and June 1 of 

each year, commencing June 1, 2017. Principal is payable in annual installments ranging from 

$2,480,000 to $6,265,000 commencing June 1, 2018 and ending June 1, 2046. The City realized 

debt service savings of $9.67 million and a present value savings of $5.77 million.  The true 

interest cost of the fi nancing was 2.88%.  The refunding resulted in a deferred charge of $1,096,185. 114,355,000

Total Light and Power Fund Revenue Bonds $220,990,000
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 Outstanding at
Water Fund June 30, 2019
  

 

2010A & B Water Revenue Bonds
On December 23, 2010, the City issued $30,000,000 of 2010 Water Revenue Bonds consisting 

of $25,425,000 of 2010A Series Taxable Build America Bonds (“2010A Bonds”) and $4,575,000 

of 2010B Series Tax-Exempt (“2010B Bonds”). The 2010 Water Revenue Bonds were issued to 

fi nance the costs of acquisition and construction of certain capital improvements to the Water 

System, to make an additional deposit to the Parity Reserve Fund, and to pay costs of issuance of 

the bonds. Interest on the 2010A Bonds, which varies from 6.0% to 7.3% per annum, is payable 

semi-annually on June 1 and December 1, commencing June 1, 2011. Principal is payable in 

annual installments ranging from $775,000 to $1,910,000 commencing June 1, 2021 and ending 

June 1, 2040. Interest on the 2010B Bonds, with rates varying from 3.0% to 5.0% per annum, 

is payable semi-annually on June 1 and December 1 commencing June 1, 2011. Principal is 

payable in annual installments ranging from $585,000 to $740,000 commencing June 1, 2014 

and ending June 1, 2020. This debt issue is subject to a reserve requirement in conjunction with 

non-subordinate (parity) debt issued by the City. The City is in compliance with the revenue rate 

covenant requiring net income of the water system to be at least equal to 1.10 times the amount 

necessary to pay principal and interest on the bonds and all other parity bonds.  $26,165,000

2011A Water Revenue/Refunding Bonds
On December 20, 2011, the City issued $29,770,000 of 2011A Series Water Revenue/Refunding 

Bonds, to refund a portion of the outstanding 2003 Water Revenue Bonds and pay the issuance 

costs of the 2011 Water Revenue/Refunding Bonds. The refunding has generated a net pres-

ent value savings of $3.5 million or 11.36% savings of the refunded bonds.  Interest is payable 

semi-annually on June 1 and December 1 commencing June 1, 2012 at coupon rates varying 

from 3.0% to 5.0% per annum.  Principal is payable in annual installments ranging from $25,000 

to $2,490,000 commencing June 1, 2013 and ending June 1, 2033.  This debt issue is subject to a 

reserve requirement in conjunction with non-subordinate (parity) debt issued by the City. The City 

is in compliance with the revenue rate covenant requiring net income of the water system to be 

at least equal to 1.10 times the amount necessary to pay principal and interest on the bonds and 

all other parity bonds. 16,275,000

2017A Water Revenue/Refunding Bonds
On April 5, 2017, the City issued the Water Revenue/Refunding Bonds, Series 2017A (2017A 

Revenue Bonds) in the amount of $15,395,000 to advance refund the City’s 2007 Water Revenue 

Bonds and pay the cost of issuance of the 2017A Revenue Bonds.  The rate of interest is 5.00% 

payable semi-annually on December 1 and June 1 of each year, commencing June 1, 2017. 

Principal is payable in annual installments ranging from $475,000 to $1,150,000 commencing 

June 1, 2017 and ending June 1, 2036. The City realized debt service savings of $1.67 million and 

a present value savings of $1.23 million.  The true interest cost of the fi nancing was 3.25%. 13,620,000

Total Water Fund Revenue Bonds     $56,060,000
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Disclosure Related to Long-Term Debt Under GASB 88

In regards to, the City’s outstanding bonds from public off erings related to business-type, activities (2010AB, 2011A and 2017A 

Water Revenue Bonds and 2009, 2010A, 2012A, 2013A and 2016A Electric Revenue Bonds) are payable from and secured by 

revenue received by the Utilities (Water and Power Funds).

In relations to the Electric Revenue Bonds course of action in case of the City’s default, the following is the course of action:

Upon the concurrence and continuation of and Event of Default the Bond Owners’ Committee or, if there is none, the Owners of 25% in 

aggregate Bond Obligation of Bonds then Outstanding may, by written notice to the City, declare the entire unpaid principal of the Bonds 

due and payable and, thereupon the entire unpaid principal of the Bonds will forthwith become due and payable.  Upon any such declaration 

the City will forthwith pay to the Owners of the Bonds the entire unpaid principal of, premium, pledged for such purpose.  If at any time 

after such a declaration and before the entry of a fi nal judgement or decree in any suit, action or proceeding instituted on account of such 

default or before the completion of the enforcement of any other remedy under the Fiscal Agent Agreement, the principal of all Bonds that 

have matured or been called for redemption pursuant to any sinking fund provision and all arrears of interest have been paid and any other 

Events of Default which may have occurred have been remedied, then the Bonds Owners’ Committee or, if there is none, the Owners of 

25% in aggregate Bonds Obligation of Bond then Outstanding may, by written notice of the City, rescind of annual such declaration and its 

consequences.  No such rescission or annulment will extend to or aff ect any subsequent default or impair any right consequent thereon.

In relations to the Water Revenue Bonds course of action in case of the City’s default, the following is the course of action:

Application of Pledged Revenues and Other Funds After Default; Acceleration. If an Event of Default shall occur and be continuing, 

the City shall immediately transfer to the Trustee all Pledged Revenues held by it and received thereafter and the Trustee shall apply 

all Pledged Revenues and any other funds then held or thereafter received by the Trustee under any of the provisions of the Indenture 

(except as otherwise provided in the Indenture) as follows and in the following order:

(1) To the payment of any expenses necessary in the opinion of the Trustee to protect the interests of the Owners of the Bonds and Parity 

Debt, including the costs and expenses of the Trustee and the Bondholders in declaring such Event of Default, and payment of reason-

able fees and expenses of the Trustee (including reasonable fees and disbursements of its counsel and other agents) incurred in and 

about the performance of its powers and duties under the Indenture;

(2) To the payment of the whole amount of Bond Obligation then due on the Bonds and Parity Debt (upon presentation of the Bonds and 

Parity Debt to be paid, and stamping thereon of the payment if only partially paid, or surrender thereof if fully paid) subject to the provisions 

of the Indenture, with interest on such Bond Obligation at the rate or rates of interest borne by the respective Bonds and Parity Debt, to 

the payment to the persons entitled thereto of all installments of interest then due and the unpaid principal or Redemption Price of any 

Bonds and Parity Debt which shall have become due, whether at maturity or by call for redemption, in the order of their due dates, with 

interest on the overdue Bond Obligation and Parity Debt at the rate borne by the respective Bonds and Parity Debt, and, if the amount 

available shall not be suffi  cient to pay in full all the Bonds and Parity Debt due on any date, together with such interest, then to the 

payment thereof ratably, according to the amounts of principal or interest or Accreted Value (plus accrued interest) due on such date 

to the persons entitled thereto, without any discrimination or preference; and

(3) To the extent not paid pursuant to clause (1) or (2) above, to any Credit Provider any amounts then due and owing.  

 In each and every such case during the continuance of such Event of Default, the Owners of not less than a majority in aggregate 

amount of Bond Obligation of the Bonds at the time Outstanding shall be entitled, upon notice in writing to the City, to declare the 

principal of all of the Bonds then Outstanding, and the interest accrued thereon, to be due and payable immediately, and upon any 

such declaration the same shall become and shall be immediately due and payable, anything in the Indenture or in the Bonds 

contained to the contrary notwithstanding.

 This provision, however, is subject to the condition that if, at any time after the principal of the Bonds shall have been so declared due 

and payable, the City shall pay to or shall deposit with the Trustee a sum suffi  cient to pay all principal on such Bonds matured prior 

to such declaration and all matured installments of interest (if any) upon all the Bonds, and the reasonable fees and expenses of the 

Trustee, and any and all other defaults known to the Trustee (other than in the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds due 

and payable solely by reason of such declaration) shall have been made good or cured to the satisfaction of the Trustee, or provision 

deemed by the Trustee to be adequate shall have been made therefor, then, and in every such case, the Owners of not less than a 

majority in aggregate amount of Bond Obligation of the Bonds at the time Outstanding, by written notice to the City and to the Trustee, 

may, on behalf of the Owners of all the Bonds, rescind and annul such declaration and its consequences; but no such rescission and 

annulment shall extend to or shall aff ect any subsequent default, or shall impair or exhaust any right or power consequent thereon.
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(9) Stranded Investments 
In November 2006, the City Council approved the Stranded Investment Reserve (“SIR”) Utilization Plan (“Plan”). In January 2009, 

in accordance with the Plan and a previously approved Prepayment Agreement (“Agreement”), PWP utilized approximately $80.0 

million of the reserve funds to complete an economic defeasance of selected bonds for IPP. As authorized in the Agreement, the IPA 

issued approximately $70.0 million of subordinated notes to PWP, the payments for which will off set a portion of the debt service 

associated with the economically-defeased bonds, thereby reducing the cost of energy purchased from IPP.  In September 2018, 

a plan of withdrawing $7.0 million per year beginning FY 2019 through FY 2022 from the SIR was approved to off set the stranded 

costs associated with the Intermountain Power Plant and Magnolia Power Plant projects, and potential increases in power costs to 

customers.

As of June 30, 2019, the SIR balance was about $89.3 million. The details of the additions and subtractions from the Reserve that 

occurred during fi scal year 2019 are shown below. 

Restricted Cash and Investment     

Beginning balance   $69,216,320 

Interest earnings    1,404,584 

Market gain/losses    2,290,188 

Transfer of SIR    (7,000,000)

Restricted cash and investment ending balance   $65,911,092 

   

IPA Subordinated Notes Balance at  Balance at
 June 30, 2018 Reduction June 30, 2019

Notes Receivable $24,997,500   (4,353,333)  20,644,167 

Premium  3,370,610   (674,122)  2,696,488 

Total IPA Subordinated Notes $28,368,110   (5,027,455)       23,340,655 

    

Restricted for Stranded Investments at June 30, 2019   $89,251,747
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Light and Power Fund      
 Balance at   Balance at
 June 30, 2018 Increase Decrease June 30, 2019

GASB68 Change of Assumptions  $1,230,170   259,877   -  1,490,047 

GASB68 Diff erence in Experience  2,498,513  -   (1,090,355)  1,408,158 

GASB75 Change of Assumptions  90,521   -   (23,060)  67,461 

GASB75 Diff erence between projected   

and actual earnings on OPEB plan investments  202   3,058   -   3,260

  $3,819,406   262,935   (1,113,415)  2,968,926  

Water Fund      
 Balance at   Balance at
 June 30, 2018 Increase Decrease June 30, 2019

GASB68 Change of Assumptions  $   449,774   108,168   -   557,942 

GASB68 Diff erence in Experience  919,422   -   (453,830)  465,592 

GASB75 Change of Assumptions  43,693   -   (11,444)  32,249 

GASB75 Diff erence between projected 

and actual earnings on OPEB plan investments  95   1,518   -   1,613

  $1,412,984   109,686   (465,274)  1,057,396 

Water Fund      
 Balance at   Balance at
 June 30, 2018 Increase Decrease June 30, 2019

2003 Water Bonds Deferred Charges  $   330,805   -   (66,160)  264,645 

GASB68 Contribution Subsequent to Measurement Date  2,115,464   2,198,612   (2,115,464)  2,198,612 

GASB68 Net Diff erence on Pension Plan Investments  790,787   -   (597,218)  193,569 

GASB68 Change of Assumptions  3,277,524   79,602   (1,125,004)  2,232,122 

GASB75 Change of Assumptions  -   169,780   -   169,780 

  $6,514,580   2,447,994   (3,903,846)  5,058,728 

(10) Deferred Infl ow and Outfl ow of Resources

Deferred Outfl ows:

Light and Power Fund      

 Balance at   Balance at
 June 30, 2018 Increase Decrease June 30, 2019

1998 Electric Bonds Deferred Charges  $      542,318   -   (108,464)  433,854 

2002 Electric Bonds Deferred Charges  878,986   -   (292,995)  585,991 

2008 Electric Bonds Deferred Charges  1,015,977   -   (53,472)  962,505 

GASB68 Contribution Subsequent to Measurement Date  5,318,670   5,282,299   (5,318,670)  5,282,299 

GASB68 Net Diff erence on Pension Plan Investments  1,487,315   -   (1,434,853)  52,462 

GASB68 Change of Assumptions  8,240,305   191,251   (2,702,891)  5,728,665 

GASB75 Change of Assumptions  -   342,099   -   342,099 

  $17,483,571   5,815,649   (9,911,345)  13,387,875  

Deferred Infl ows:
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(11) Transfers 
The following is a summary of transfers in and out for the year ended June 30, 2019: 

Transfer From Transfer To Amount 

Light and Power Fund City of Pasadena  $17,608,813  (1)

Water Fund City of Pasadena  1,894,138  (2)

City of Pasadena Light and Power Fund  4,194,083  (3)

(1)  Light and Power contributed $17,608,813 to the General Fund for the payment of interest and principal on City bonds, municipal  

 improvements, and other purposes. 

(2)  The Water Fund reimbursed $1,894,138 to the General Fund.  Of this amount, $1,544,138 was reimbursed to cover City services  

 which directly benefi ted the Water Fund, and $350,000 supports Hahamongna Watershed Park operations. 

(3)  The City of Pasadena transferred $4,194,083 to the Light and Power Fund to cover costs of certain electrical undergrounding   

 projects from the Underground Utility Fund. 

(12) Self-Insurance 
The City maintains self-insurance and excess insurance programs for various lines of liability coverage.  Liability claims are 

self-administered, within the self-insured retention. For the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 excess liability insurance was 

purchased with limits of $25 million excess of a $3 million per occurrence self-insured retention.   Excess worker’s compensation 

insurance, with a $5,000,000 self-insured retention, was initially purchased in FY 2016 and has been renewed for FY 2019.  Worker’s 

Compensation claims for all City workers, including Public Safety, Fire and Police, are administered by a Third Party Administrator, 

AdminSure.  The City maintains a few self-administered claims (with dates of Injury before 7/1/2012). 

Self-Insurance losses and administrative costs are reported in the General Liability and Workers’ Compensation Internal Service 

Funds. Losses incurred are reimbursed by departments over a period of time as part of an internal service assessment system.  

Legal expenses are reported in the City Attorney Department of the General Fund.  A case reserve is established for each claim, 

monitored and adjusted by the Claims Coordinator or the Workers’ Compensation Claims Supervisor, including expected litigation 

expenses and losses that will be paid by the City Treasurer.

The City renewed Property Insurance on all its buildings, including Equipment Breakdown, with a combined total scheduled insured 

value of $976 million.  The policy includes coverage for fi ne arts, valuable papers, business personal property, business income and 

extended business income or rental value.  Policy limits are $250,000,000 with a deductible of $25,000 for Earthquake Sprinkler 

Leakage, $100,000 for Flood, and $25,000 for any other covered loss.  Exclusions include earthquake, collapse of buildings and 

nuclear hazard.  There have been no new claims during FY 2019. 

The City’s Property: Power Plant Boiler and Machinery policy, with total insured value of $333,115,247. The program provides property 

and equipment breakdown coverage for City’s power plant facilities and machinery.  The policy aff ords coverage for risks of loss 

or damage, including boiler explosion and machinery breakdown.  Policy limits are $130,000,000 with deductibles of $750,000 per 

occurrence for all other property damage and $1,500,000 per occurrence for machinery breakdown of GT1, GT3, and GT5.  The City 

has received no new claims under this policy for FY 2019.

In an eff ort to protect the City’s assets and transfer potential risk, the City also purchases the following insurance policies:  Medical 

Malpractice; Pollution Liability; Terrorism for Property and Business Interruption and Terrorism & Sabotage Insurance; Auto Physical 

Damage; Cyber Risk Privacy Liability; Fiduciary (purchased for and by the Fire and Police Retirement System); and Crime policies.

Additional information regarding the City’s self-insurance program can be found in the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

(13) Pension Plans 
Each full-time employee and each part-time employee (with 1,000 hours or more of service) of Pasadena Water and Power is a 

member of either the Fire or Police Retirement System (“FPRS”) or California Public Employees’ Retirement System (“CalPERS”). 

The City has issued pension bonds to fund the unfunded pension obligation of the City. A portion of this debt is attributable to 

Pasadena Water and Power employees. Additional information regarding the City’s defi ned benefi t pension plans and related 

pension obligation bonds can be found in the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 
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(14) Postemployment Benefi ts Other Than Pensions
The City provides a subsidy to retirees of the City who are members of the CalPERS or FPRS.   Benefi t provisions are established 

and amended through negotiations between the City and the respective unions.  A portion of the OPEB expenses and liability are 

allocated to Water and Power funds based on number of employees. Additional information regarding the City’s OPEB plan, 

contributions, net OPEB liability, deferred outfl ows of resources and deferred infl ows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB 

expense can be found in the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

(15) Commitments and Contingencies 

Jointly Governed Organizations 

“Take or Pay” Contracts 
The City’s electric operation has entered into various “Take or Pay” contracts to provide for current and future electric generating 

capacity and transmission of energy for City customers. The City is obligated to pay the amortized cost of indebtedness regardless 

of the ability of the contracting agency to provide electricity and/or transmission, as applicable. The original indebtedness will be 

amortized by adding the fi nancing costs to purchase energy over the life of the contract. 

A summary of the City of Pasadena’s “Take or Pay” contracts (by project) as of June 30, 2019, and its estimated contractual obligations 

through 2036, based on projected energy prices (in millions) are as follows: 

 (in millions)      
       
 SCPPA Projects      
    
       Prepaid
 IPA  Mead- Mead-   Natural
 Project STS Adelanto Phoenix Magnolia Milford I Gas
        
Bonds and Notes sold (outstanding)  $681   426   35   11   278   168   291 

Interest  (13)  78   2   1   62   55   150

Combined total debt service  668   504   37   12   340   223   441 

City percentage 5.9% 5.9% 8.6% 13.8% 6.4% 2.5% 16.5%

City obligations  $   39   30   3   2   22   6   73  
        
     

Intermountain Power Authority 

The Intermountain Power Authority (“IPA”), a subdivision of the State of Utah, was formed in June 1977 to fi nance the construction of 

a 1,800-megawatt (“MW”) coal-fueled generating plant consisting of two generating units located near Delta, Utah. The City has two 

separate contracts with the IPA and certain Utah participants, namely the Power Sales Entitlement contract and the Excess Sales 

contract, which currently provide the City with a 107 MW (5.9%) maximum contractual entitlement in the facility. The City is obligated 

for 79 MW or 4.409% of the generation through the Power Sales contract. The Excess Sales Agreement with IPA, agent for the Utah 

Municipal Purchasers and the Cooperative Purchasers, entitles the City to an additional share of up to 29 megawatts or 1.591%. 

Approximately 450-500 gigawatt hours (“GWh”) of energy are delivered to the City from IPP each year.  

Southern California Public Power Authority 
The City of Pasadena Light and Power Fund joined the Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”) on November 1, 1980. 

This authority, consisting of the cities of Los Angeles, Pasadena, Anaheim, Azusa, Banning, Riverside, Colton, Vernon, Burbank, 

Glendale, Cerritos,  and the Imperial Irrigation District, was formed for the purpose of planning, fi nancing, developing, acquiring, and 

constructing future power and transmission resources. The Joint Powers Agreement has a term of fi fty years. The City entered into 

seven projects with SCPPA.

Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station 

The fi rst project in which SCPPA participated is approximately 4,000 MW nuclear fuel generation plant in Arizona (Palo Verde). The 

Palo Verde Nuclear Project consists of three (3) units, each having an electric output of approximately 1,330 MW. Units 1 and 2 began 

commercial operation in February and September 1986, respectively; and Unit 3 began commercial operation in January 1988. 

Pasadena’s entitlement share of Palo Verde generation is 4.4% or approximately 9.9 MW. As of June 30, 2018, Palo Verde’s debt 

service has been fully paid off . Participants in the project will benefi t lower cost of energy. 
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Southern Transmission System (STS) 

SCPPA fi nanced a second project called the Southern Transmission System (“STS”), which transmits power from the IPP to Southern 

California. The 500 kilovolt (“kV”) direct current (“DC”) is rated at 2,400 MW. The City’s share of the line is 5.883% or approximately 

141 MW. STS commenced commercial operations in July 1986. 

Mead-Adelanto Transmission System 

SCPPA fi nanced a third project called the Mead-Adelanto Transmission System consisting of a 202-mile long 500 kV alternating 

current (“AC”) transmission line extending between the Adelanto substation in Southern California and the Marketplace substation 

in Nevada. Commercial operations commenced in April 1996. Nine members own one-third of Mead-Adelanto through SCPPA. The 

City is obligated for 75 MW or 8.589% of the SCPPA entitlement. 

Mead-Phoenix Transmission System 

SCPPA fi nanced a fourth project called the Mead-Phoenix Transmission System consisting of a 256-mile long 500 kV AC transmission 

line extending between the Westwing substation in Arizona and the Marketplace substation in Nevada. Commercial operations 

commenced in April 1996. SCPPA has executed an ownership agreement providing it with member-related ownership shares of 

13.866% in the Westwing–Mead project component, 11.364% in the Mead Substation project component, and a 14.458% in the 

Mead–Marketplace project component. The City has entered into a transmission service contract with SCPPA, which obligates the 

City to pay the cost of its share of the transfer capability of 13.882% or 158 combined MW. 

Magnolia Project 

SCPPA fi nanced a fi fth project called the “Magnolia Power Project” consisting of a natural gas-fi red generating facility with a 

nominally rated net base capacity of 242 MW.  The facility is located on an existing generating site in the City of Burbank, California, 

including necessary and appurtenant facilities and equipment thereto, the applicable portion of any common facilities, and 

interconnection facilities. . The Project was constructed for the primary purpose of providing the participants in the Project with 

fi rm capacity and energy to help meet their power and energy requirements in 2005 and thereafter. Commercial operations 

commenced September 2005. SCPPA owns the Magnolia Power Project, and six SCPPA members have contracted with SCPPA 

for 100% of its output. The City of Pasadena’s indenture cost share is 6.399% or 14.8 MW of base capacity. 

Milford I Wind Project 

In April 2007, the City approved participation in the Milford Wind Corridor Phase I, LLC Wind Generation Project, a new 200 MW 

wind-generating facility constructed in Millard County, Utah and a power sales agreement with SCPPA for a 5 MW or 2.5% of 200 MW 

share of the project. The project serves the goals established by the City’s Renewable Portfolio Standard for PWP and aids the City 

in achieving its environmental goals. The project began commercial operation in November 2009. 

Prepaid Natural Gas Project 

On October 2007, SCPPA and the City of Pasadena along with the Cities of Anaheim, Burbank, Colton, and Glendale entered into 

separate Prepaid Natural Gas Program Gas Supply Agreements (Gas Project No.1). Gas Project No.1 primarily consists of the 

acquisition by SCPPA of the right to receive an aggregate amount of approximately 135 billion cubic feet of natural gas from 

J. Aron pursuant to the terms of the Prepaid Natural Gas Sales Agreements. The gas is delivered by J. Aron to SCPPA at designated 

delivery points on the natural gas pipelines that serve each City, in specifi ed daily quantities each month, beginning July 1, 2008, 

over approximately a 30-year term of each of the Prepaid Natural Gas Sales Agreements. In 2009 the contract was amended to 

reduce the duration by 3 years and reduce the size of the agreement from average of 2,000 million British Thermal Units (“MMBtu”) 

to average of approximately 1,400 MMBtu’s. Gas sold under the Agreements is priced at the applicable Monthly Index Price for 

the primary delivery point less a specifi ed discount. Each agreement provides for the sale to the Cities on a pay-as-¬you-go basis. 

The electric utility systems owned by each City in part provide gas-fi red electric utility service to retail consumers located in their 

respective areas. The City of Pasadena’s participation share is 16.5% or an average daily quantity of 1,400 MMBtu. 
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Natural Gas Development Project 
On July 1, 2004, nine SCPPA members, including Pasadena, signed a Development Agreement to jointly examine the feasibility 

and economies of purchasing a share in a natural gas reserve fi eld. On July 1, 2005, Pasadena and fi ve out of the eight original 

interested parties signed a fi rst agreement with SCPPA, which entitled the City to purchase up to 1,000 MMBtu per day output 

share of natural gas reserves.

Anschutz-Pinedale Gas Reserves Project 

On July 1, 2005, SCPPA successfully closed the fi rst transaction to purchase an interest in natural gas reserves under the Natural 

Gas Development Project to help ensure a stable fuel supply for PWP’s power plants. It will help ensure a stable supply for PWP’s 

power plants and stabilize the most volatile component of PWP’s operating expenses. SCPPA and other participants, including Los 

Angeles Department of Water and Power and the Turlock Irrigation District, signed purchase agreements with Anschutz Pinedale 

Corp. in Denver to buy a portion of the company’s natural gas reserves in Wyoming for $300 million. Other participating cities 

include Anaheim, Burbank, Colton, and Glendale. The agreement gives PWP a 2.38% ownership in the acquisition at a total cost 

of $6.5 million including development and transaction costs. 

Barnett Gas Reserves Project 

On October 26, 2006, SCPPA secured a second property interest in a natural gas reserve fi eld under the Gas Development Agreement 

located at the Barnett Shale Formation in Texas. Pasadena’s SCPPA partners in this project include the cities of Anaheim, Burbank, 

and Colton. The Barnett property, in its early stages of development, initially provided up to 250 MMBtu per day of gas at less than 

$6 per MMBtu. However, additional capital development (drilling) of the property resulted in greater daily volumes available for 

participants. 

Additional fi nancial information on the SCPPA may be obtained by contacting the City of Pasadena Department of Water and Power 

at 150 South Los Robles, Suite 200, Pasadena, CA 91101. 

Challenges 

In response to California Assembly Bill 1890 (“AB1890”), the City chose to open its market to competition on January 1, 2000. The 

City has long-term contracts with IPA and SCPPA, most of which obligate the City to purchase power and/or services at cost, which 

was projected to be higher than market in a deregulated environment. As a result, the City was faced with a “stranded investment” 

with a value estimated to be approximately $145.5 million in 2006. AB1890 provided for the recovery of this stranded investment 

through a “Competition Transition Charge” on each customer’s utility bill. The City stopped collecting this charge after July 1, 2002. 

A competitive fi nancial strategy, which includes a ten-year fi nancial planning model developed in 1996 and updated annually, serves 

as the blueprint for managing the Utility through the open market transition. The strategy includes recovery and elimination of the 

stranded investment with minimal impact on customer rates over approximately fi ve years. The City has implemented the approved 

Stranded Investment Utilization Plan by direct defeasance of the debt service of IPP outstanding bonds and mitigation of variable 

energy costs. In September 2018, the City implemented a plan of withdrawing $7.0 million per year beginning FY 2019 through FY 

2022 from the Stranded Investment fund to off set the stranded costs associated with the Intermountain Power Plant and Magnolia 

Power Plant projects, and potential increases in power costs to customers. As of June 30, 2019, the City’s Reserve for Stranded 

Investment fund balance was approximately $89.3 million.  

Other 

Certain federal and state revenues are received for specifi c purposes and are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. 

City management is of the opinion that adjustments, if any, resulting from such audits will not be signifi cant. 

Litigation 

A number of suits and claims are pending against Pasadena Water and Power arising in the normal course of operations. In the 

opinion of management, the results of such legal actions will not have a material adverse eff ect on the fi nancial position or results 

of operations of Pasadena Water and Power. 

In 2017, the City was served with a putative class action lawsuit entitled Komesar v. City of Pasadena, which generally asserts that 

the City’s electric utility rates are more than reasonably necessary to operate the utility to the extent they fi nance the City’s annual 

Charter-authorized transfers from the Light & Power Fund to the General Fund, which was $17.6 million for Fiscal Year 2019.  The 

lawsuit seeks a refund of the transferred funds and a court order preventing the City from continuing to impose electric rates based 

on its current rate structure, until and unless the City obtains voter approval.  The City is vigorously defending the allegations, and 

no trial date is set in the case.
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(16) Pledged Revenue 
Pasadena Water and Power has a number of outstanding debt issuances that are collateralized by pledged electric and water 

revenues. The amount and term of the remainder of these outstanding debts are presented in Note 8. The purpose of the debt 

issuances was for the fi nancing of certain Light and Power and Water projects. For the current year, debt service payments as 

a percentage of the pledged gross revenue (net of certain expenses) are indicated in the table below. These percentages also 

approximate the relationship of debt service of pledged revenues for the remainder of the term of these debts: 

(17) Subsequent Events 
Subsequent events were evaluated through the date of the audit report.

Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2019A Series

On June 10, 2019, the City Council authorized the issuance of Pasadena Electric Revenue Refunding bonds for refunding all of 

the City’s outstanding Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2009 Series and to pay the cost of issuance of the 2019A Bonds.  On 

July 22, 2019, $11,575,000 of Series 2019A Bonds, the entire issue, was sold to Wells Fargo Bank pursuant to competitive bidding. 
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 Annual Amount of      
 Pledged Revenue Annual Debt Debt Service as
Description of (net of expenses) Service Payments a Percentage of
Pledged Revenue (in thousands) (in thousands) Pledged Revenue
     
Light and Power Revenues  $75,345   23,253  31%
      
Water Revenues  16,949   6,982  41%
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City of Pasadena
Water and Power Enterprise Funds

Miscellaneous Plan
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios

As of June 30, for the Last Ten Fiscal Years *

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY

Service Cost $      5,841,112  4,695,802  4,090,236  4,067,785  4,355,760 

Interest  18,953,279  18,532,399  18,056,944  17,411,840  17,237,556 

Diff erence Between Expected and Actual Experience  (751,356)  (2,831,782)  (3,474,364)  (3,567,591)  -   

Changes in Assumptions  (1,850,081)  14,854,128  -    (4,107,905)  -   

Benefi t Payments, Including Refunds of 

    Employee Contributions  (13,761,946)  (12,918,361)  (12,248,684)  (11,541,921)  (11,107,063)

Net Change in Total Pension Liability  8,431,008  22,332,186  6,424,132  2,262,208  10,486,253 

Total Pension Liability - Beginning  274,714,514  252,382,328  245,958,196  243,695,988  233,209,735 

Total Pension Liability - Ending (a)  283,145,522  274,714,514  252,382,328  245,958,196  243,695,988 

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

Contribution - Employer  6,739,291  6,167,042  5,532,095  4,846,845  4,657,861 

Contribution - Employee  2,193,366  2,224,806  2,152,622  2,093,924  2,756,106 

Net Investment Income  16,426,351  19,143,234  946,139  4,076,489  27,899,638 

Benefi t Payments, Including Refunds of 

    Employee Contributions  (13,761,946)  (12,918,361)  (12,248,684)  (11,541,921)  (11,107,063)

Plan to Plan Resource Movement  (478)  (120)  (51)  173  -   

Administrative Expense  (302,903)  (266,028)  (111,531)  (204,025)  -   

Other Changes in Fiduciary Net Position**  (575,217)  -    -    (121,652)  -   

Net Change in Fiduciary Net Position  10,718,464  14,350,573  (3,729,410)  (850,167)  24,206,542 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning  195,452,325  181,101,752  184,831,162  185,681,329  161,474,787 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)  206,170,789  195,452,325  181,101,752  184,831,162  185,681,329 

Plan Net Pension Liability/(Assets) - Ending (a) - (b) $   76,974,733  79,262,189  71,280,576  61,127,034  58,014,659 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage 
    of the Total Pension Liability 72.81% 71.15% 71.76% 75.15% 76.19%

Covered-Employee Payroll  $26,849,757  26,714,363  25,928,148  25,711,112  26,015,092 

Plan Net Pension Liability/(Asset) as a Percentage 
    of Covered-Employee Payroll*** 286.69% 296.70% 274.92% 237.75% 223.00%

* Historical information is required only for measurement for which GASB 68 is applicable.  Fiscal Year 2015 was the fi rst year of implementation, therefore only fi ve 
   years are shown.

** During Fiscal Year 2017-18, as a result of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement (GASB) No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment   
    Benefi t Plans Other than Pensions (GASB 75), CalPERS reported its proportionate share of activity related to postemployment benefi ts for participation in the State of   
    California’s agent OPEB plan. Accordingly, CalPERS recorded a one-time expense as a result of the adoption of GASB 75.

    Additionally, CalPERS employees participate in various State of California agent pension plans and during Fiscal Year 2017-18, CalPERS recorded a correction to 
    previously reported fi nancial statements to properly refl ect its proportionate share of activity related to pensions in accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting   
    and Financial Reporting for Pensions (GASB 68).

***Restated

Notes to Schedule:

Benefi t Changes: The fi gures above do not include any liability impact that may have resulted from plan changes which occurred after June 30, 2015. This applies for 
voluntary benefi t changes as well as any off ers of Two Years Additional Service Credit (a.k.a. Golden Handshakes).

Changes of Assumptions: In 2018, demographic assumptions and infl ation rate were changed in accordance to the CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial 
Assumptions December 2017. There were no changes in the discount rate. In 2017, the accounting discount rate reduced from 7.65 percent to 7.15 percent. In 2016, 
there were no changes. In 2015, amounts reported refl ect an adjustment of the discount rate from 7.5 percent (net of administrative expense) to 7.65 percent (without 
a reduction for pension plan administrative expense.)  In 2014, the amounts reported were based on the 7.5 percent discount rate.
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City of Pasadena
Water and Power Enterprise Funds

Miscellaneous Plan
Schedule of Plan Contributions

As of June 30, for the Last Ten Fiscal Years *

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Actuarially Determined Contribution  $  7,480,922  7,472,985  6,265,272  5,641,466  4,533,827 

Contribution in Relation to the Actuarially 
    Determined Contribution  (7,480,922)  (7,472,985)  (6,265,272)  (5,641,466)  (4,533,827)

Contribution Defi ciency (Excess)  $                  -    -    -    -    -   

Covered-Employee Payroll  $27,373,391  26,849,757  26,714,363  25,928,148  25,711,112 

Contributions as a Percentage of 
    Covered-Employee Payroll 27.33% 27.83% 23.45% 21.76% 17.63%

* Historical information is required only for measurement for which GASB 68 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2015 was the fi rst year of implementation,   
  therefore only fi ve years are shown.

Note to Schedule:

Valuation Date: June 30 2019 (1)

Methods and  Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal cost method

Amortization method/period Level percentage of payroll, closed

Infl ation 2.75%

Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service

Payroll Growth 3.00%

Investment rate of return 7.15% net of pension investment and administrative expenses, including infl ation.

Retirement age The probabilities of retirement are based on the 2014 CalPERS Experience Study 
for the period from 1997 to 2011.

Mortality The probabilities of mortality are based on the 2014 CalPERS Experience Study 
for the period from 1997 to 2011. 
Pre-retirement and Post-retirement mortality rates include 20 years of projected 
mortality improvement using Scale BB Published by the Society of Actuaries.

(1) The actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contributions for Fiscal Year 2018-19 were derived from the 
   June 30, 2016 funding valuation report.
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City of Pasadena
Water and Power Enterprise Funds

Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
As of June 30, for the Last Ten Fiscal Years *

2019 2018

TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY

Service Cost  $      561,616  539,593 

Interest  453,275  415,621 

Changes in Assumptions  639,848  (167,767)

Benefi t Payments  (456,126)  (406,018)

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability  1,198,613  381,429 

Total OPEB Liability - Beginning  12,268,983  11,887,554 

Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a)  13,467,596  12,268,983 

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

Contribution - Employer  456,126  745,587 

Net Investment Income  23,252  372 

Benefi t Payments  (456,126)  (406,018)

Administrative Expense  (1,690)  -   

Net Change in Fiduciary Net Position  21,562  339,941 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning  339,941  -   

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)  361,503  339,941 

Net OPEB Liability/(Assets) - Ending (a) - (b)  $13,106,093  11,929,042 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total OPEB Liability 2.68% 2.77%

Covered-Employee Payroll  $23,524,890  $22,209,460 

Net OPEB Liability/(Asset) as a Percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll 55.71% 53.71%

*  Historical information is required only for the measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable.  Fiscal Year 2018 was the fi rst year of 

   implementation.  Future years' information will be displayed up to 10 years as information becomes available.

Notes to Schedule:  None

Changes of Assumptions:   The discount rate was unchanged from 3.4% (net of administrative expense) to 3.5% for the measurement period ended 

June 30, 2018.
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City of Pasadena
Water and Power Enterprise Funds

Schedule of OPEB Plan Contributions
As of June 30, for the Last Ten Fiscal Years *

2019 2018**

Actuarially Determined Contribution  $     444,614  745,587

Contribution in Relation to the Actuarially Determined Contribution  (444,614)  (745,587)

Contribution Defi ciency (Excess)  $                  -    -   

Covered-Employee Payroll  $22,931,119  22,209,460 

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll 1.94% 3.36%

*  Historical information is required only for the measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable.  Fiscal Year 2018 was the fi rst year 

   of implementation.  Future years' information will be displayed up to 10 years as information becomes available.

**Restated for FY 2019

Note to Schedule:  

Actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contribution for Fiscal Year 2019 were from the June 30, 2017 

actuarial valuation.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contributions:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Assets Valuation Method Market Value

Infl ation 2.75%

Payroll Growth 3% per annum, in aggregate

Investment Rate of Return 5% per annum

Healthcare Cost-trend Rates Based on recent premium experience assuming 1%-2% increase due to market trends then 

reduced to a rate refl ecting medical price infl ation

Retirement Age According to the retirement rates under the most recent CalPERS pension plan valuation

Mortality Pre-retirement mortality probability based on 2014 CalPERS 1997 to 2011 Experience Study 

covering CalPERS participants.  Post-retirement mortality probability based on CalPERS 

Experience Study 2007 to 2011 covering participants in CalPERS
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POWER DIVISION
TEN-YEAR OPERATIONS SUMMARY

Fiscal Year FY 2019 FY 2018 FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2015 FY 2014 FY 2013 FY 2012 FY 2011 FY 2010

FINANCIAL DATA  (in thousands)

Operating Revenues  $180,028  182,755  176,728  181,348  182,945  167,040  167,651  163,213  167,565  165,102 

Sales to Other Utilities  10,714  9,911  5,543  2,256  3,764  4,021  6,522  8,963  7,199  7,251 

PTO - TRR*  14,945  14,652  14,218  13,527  13,608  13,898  14,003  13,753  12,229  11,343 

Other Income**  31,703  12,052  16,842  15,360  21,233  16,728  20,247  10,206  13,948  21,652 

Total Revenues  237,390  219,370  213,331  212,491  221,550  201,687  208,423  196,135  200,941  205,348 

Fuel - Retail  5,446  4,490  5,134  5,617  7,636  8,029  10,808  7,294  5,587  9,182 

Fuel - Wholesale  4,491  2,968  1,150  741  2,012  2,131  3,740  4,066  4,166  4,575 

Purchased Power - Retail  91,667  84,508  87,256  86,162  87,544  123,044  94,734  87,649  89,490  76,655 

Purchased Power - Wholesale  1,953  1,269  861  1,185  963  1,072  1,021  461  755  75 

Other Production  9,437  10,464  11,073  10,189  8,619  8,447  8,243  8,351  7,823  7,033 

Transmission and Distribution  18,586  18,498  21,928  14,250  13,708  15,433  14,948  15,161  13,646  13,063 

Administrative and General Expenses  15,072  15,438  17,371  15,745  15,508  27,239  13,100  14,228  11,458  11,552 

Customer and Commercial Expenses  8,983  11,001  13,673  12,462  11,663  12,239  12,433  11,866  10,037  11,901 

Depreciation  31,702  30,217  25,759  25,156  19,290  18,782  18,655  18,408  18,398  17,425 

Interest Expense  9,538  9,019  7,194  4,204  4,556  13,707  7,723  5,955  6,021  7,205 

Transfer to General Fund  17,609  16,847  17,371  17,589  16,122  14,682  14,093  15,861  13,492  16,973 

Total Expenses  214,484  204,719  208,770  193,300  187,621  244,805  199,498  189,300  180,873  175,639 

Net Income  $  22,906  14,651  4,561  19,191  33,929  (43,118)  8,925  6,835  20,068  29,709 

Total Net Position at end of year  $581,390  558,484  543,833  539,272  520,081  486,152  529,270  520,345  513,510  493,442 

Outstanding Long-Term Debt  220,990  233,465  245,465  184,445  193,785  202,735  134,485  142,900  150,845  155,510 

OPERATING AND USAGE DATA (in MWh)

Energy Generated 67,244 76,194 62,106 48,489 83,296 75,838 168,470 147,749 106,147 123,757

Energy Purchased 1,033,370 1,022,168 1,043,220 1,099,525 1,101,285 1,127,617 1,215,779 1,248,368 1,286,858 1,295,905

Total Energy Delivered 1,100,614 1,098,362 1,105,326 1,148,014 1,184,581 1,203,455 1,384,249 1,396,117 1,393,005 1,419,662

Total Retail Energy Sales (MWh)*** 1,018,656 1,040,640 1,056,046 1,094,750 1,129,617 1,109,888 1,127,252 1,114,111 1,159,581 1,184,344

Total Wholesale Energy Sales 26,645 13,096 67 310 30,969 36,811 185,361 199,045 169,402 164,215

Total Energy Sales 1,045,301 1,053,736 1,056,113 1,095,060 1,160,586 1,146,699 1,312,613 1,313,156 1,328,983 1,348,559

System Peak (MW) 302 315 281 307 316 299 292 307 320 293

Number of Retail Services 67,025 66,505 66,290 65,611 65,559 65,034 64,926 64,836 63,950 63,843

Average Annual Residential Usage 
(kWh)

5,603 5,577 5,587 5,753 5,731 5,605 5,926 5,696 5,781 5,947

* Participating Transmission Owner - Transmission Revenue Requirement

** Includes Transfer-in from City, Contribution in Aid of Construction ("CIAC"), Investment Earnings, Cap & Trade Revenues, Low Carbon Fuel Standard (“LCFS”) 

    and Renewable Energy Credit (“REC”) sales.

*** Includes unbilled MWh
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POWER DIVISION SALES COMPARISON

                                 Wholesale
                                 Energy Sales

                                 To Other
                                 Utilities*

Retail and Other Electricity Sales

Residential**
Commercial &

 Industrial**

Street 
Lights &
Traffi  c 

Signals** Other*** Total
Total
Sales

Revenue from Sales of Electricity

Year Ended June 30

2019  $10,714,292  62,973,543  115,292,371  1,998,411  27,076,181  207,340,506  218,054,798 

2018  9,911,089  61,829,167  119,510,176  1,998,735  18,866,514  202,204,592  212,115,681 

Increase (Decrease)  803,203  1,144,376  (4,217,805)  (324)  8,209,667  5,135,914  5,939,117 

Percent Change 8.1% 1.9% -3.5% 0.0% 43.5% 2.5% 2.8%

Megawatt-Hours Sold

Year Ended June 30

2019 26,645 325,487 686,614 13,371  (6,816)  1,018,656  1,045,301 

2018  13,096  320,878  709,598  13,372  (3,208)  1,040,640  1,053,736 

Increase (Decrease) 13,549 4,609 (22,984) (1) (3,608) (21,984) (8,435)

Percent Change 103.5% 1.4% -3.2% 0.0% 112.5% -2.1% -0.8%

Average Billing Price per Kilowatt-Hour

Year Ended June 30

2019  N/A  $0.193  0.168  0.149  N/A  0.204  N/A 

2018  N/A  0.193  0.168  0.149  N/A  0.194  N/A 

Increase (Decrease)  N/A 0.000 0.000 0.000  N/A 0.010  N/A 

Percent Change N/A 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% N/A 5.2% N/A

Average Number of Services****

Year Ended June 30

2019 4 58,096 8,929  N/A  N/A 67,025 67,029

2018 5  57,540  8,965  N/A  N/A 66,505 66,510

Increase (Decrease) -1 556 -36  N/A  N/A 520 519

Percent Change -20.0% 1.0% -0.4% N/A N/A 0.8% 0.8%

Average Annual Use per Customer (kWh)

Year Ended June 30

2019  N/A  5,603  76,897  N/A  N/A  15,198  15,595 

2018  N/A  5,577  79,152  N/A  N/A  15,648  15,843 

Increase (Decrease)  N/A  26  (2,255)  N/A  N/A  (450)  (248)

Percent Change N/A 0.5% -2.8% N/A N/A -2.9% -1.6%

* Includes energy, ancillary, deviation, and transmission revenues

** Includes Public Benefi ts Charge

*** Includes:

a) Net Change in Unbilled Revenue (-6,816 MWh)  $   (236,813)

b) CAISO-PTO Revenue  14,945,416

c) Cap and Trade Revenue  10,301,399

d) Connection and Other Service Revenue  460,536

e) Low Carbon Fuel Standard  1,124,197

f) Renewable Energy Credit Sales  481,446

            Total  $27,076,181

**** Street Lights and Traffi  c Signals average number of services are included under the Commercial and Industrial category.
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WATER DIVISION
TEN-YEAR OPERATIONS SUMMARY

Fiscal Year FY 2019 FY 2018 FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2015 FY 2014 FY 2013 FY 2012 FY 2011 FY 2010

FINANCIAL DATA (in thousands)

Operating Revenues  $  60,181  62,592  58,287  50,835  57,440  61,233  58,536  54,301  47,137  43,480 

Other Income  6,719  4,867  4,945  7,463  9,753  5,778  7,587  8,453  4,302  4,880 

Total Revenues  66,900  67,459  63,232  58,298  67,193  67,011  66,123  62,754  51,439  48,360 

Purchased Water  20,846  21,446  18,701  17,216  19,198  22,596  17,953  16,748  14,862  13,646 

Sources of Supply  1,694  1,632  1,710  1,167  836  891  977  1,009  966  486 

Pumping  3,421  3,382  3,153  2,758  2,981  2,731  3,009  2,996  2,917  2,695 

Water Treatment  2,334  2,002  2,671  2,034  3,565  3,761  4,512  3,590  1,504  1,263 

Transmission and Distribution  5,514  5,318  6,642  4,474  4,416  5,443  4,434  5,179  5,292  4,815 

Administrative & General Expenses  7,796  8,051  7,230  6,709  6,517  25,819  5,452  5,159  4,455  4,322 

Customer and Commercial Expenses  3,715  1,970  2,006  1,142  1,298  1,288  1,363  1,732  1,485  1,440 

Depreciation  8,379  7,751  6,235  6,037  5,550  5,327  5,402  4,977  4,823  3,154 

Interest Expense  3,037  3,206  3,638  3,770  3,904  3,147  3,172  4,306  3,680  2,752 

Transfer to General Fund*  1,894  1,924  1,894  2,015  1,922  3,968  3,707  3,313  3,104  3,066 

Total Expenses  58,630  56,682  53,880  47,322  50,187  74,971  49,981  49,009  43,088  37,639 

Net Income  $     8,270  10,777  9,352  10,976  17,006  (7,960)  16,142  13,745  8,351  10,721 

Total Net Position at end of year  $182,846  174,576  163,799  154,447  143,471  126,465  134,425  118,283  104,538  96,187 

Outstanding Long-Term Debt  56,060  59,755  63,280  69,120  72,425  75,610  78,680  81,665  84,845  57,145 

OPERATING AND CONSUMPTION DATA (in thousands of billing units)

Production

Pumped Water 4,340 4,200 4,339 4,226 4,597 4,734 6,363 5,485 4,778 4,609

Purchased Water 7,897 8,635 7,673 7,073 8,156 10,060 7,951 7,823 8,261 8,590

Total Production 12,237 12,835 12,012 11,299 12,753 14,794 14,314 13,308 13,039 13,199

Water System Losses (761) (754) (1,015) (981) (341) (951) (1,146) (1,024) (1,070) (695)

Water Sold 11,476 12,081 10,997 10,318 12,412 13,843 13,168 12,284 11,969 12,504

Number of Services 38,114 38,046 38,067 37,959 37,972 37,974 37,934 37,891 38,067 37,586

System Peak (Acre feet) 120 106 101 93 111 116 126 115 115 120

* Includes Hahamongna Transfer of $350
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WATER DIVISION SALES COMPARISON

Inside Outside City
Fire Service & 

Miscellaneous* Total

Revenue from Sales of Water

Year Ended June 30

2019  $46,621,545 9,230,240 2,068,738 2,260,141  60,180,664 

2018  48,488,639  9,641,711  1,784,349  2,677,259  62,591,958 

Increase (Decrease) (1,867,094) (411,471) 284,389 (417,118) (2,411,294)

Percent Change -3.9% -4.3% 15.9% -15.6% -3.9%

Billing Units Sold

Year Ended June 30

2019 9,495,726 1,568,132 412,624 1,685 11,478,167 

2018  10,088,881  1,663,586  328,169 1,701 12,082,337 

Increase (Decrease) (593,155) (95,454) 84,455 (16) (604,170)

Percent Change -5.9% -5.7% 25.7% -0.9% -5.0%

Average Price per Billing Unit

Year Ended June 30

2019  $4.91  5.89  5.01  N/A  5.24 

2018 4.81 5.80 5.44  N/A 5.18 

Increase (Decrease) 0.10 0.09 (0.43) N/A 0.06 

Percent Change 2.1% 1.6% -7.9% N/A 1.2%

Average Number of Services

Year Ended June 30

2019 31,325  6,479 310  N/A 38,114 

2018  31,281  6,468  297  N/A 38,046 

Increase (Decrease) 44 11 13 N/A 68 

Percent Change 0.1% 0.2% 4.4% N/A 0.2%

Average Annual Billing Unit per Service**

Year Ended June 30

2019 303 242 1,331  N/A 301 

2018  323  257  1,105  N/A 318 

Increase (Decrease)  (20)  (15)  226 N/A  (17)

Percent Change -6.2% -5.8% 20.5% N/A -5.3%

*Includes:

a) Unbilled Revenues  $    (50,955)

b) Sales to Other Agencies  1,044,000 

c)  Miscellaneous Revenues  146,343 

d)  Fire Protection-Private  1,120,753 

Total  $2,260,141 

**One billing unit equals 100 cubic feet of water, or 748 gallons
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CITY OF PASADENA
Pledged-Revenue Coverage

Business-Type Activity Debt
Last Ten Fiscal Years (in thousands)

Light and Power Revenue Bonds

Fiscal Year
Ended

June 30

Light and
Power

Revenues*

Less
Operating

Expenses**

Net
Available
Revenues

Debt Service ***

Principal Interest Coverage

2010  191,927  134,035  57,892  7,510  7,604 383.04%

2011  193,049  142,962  50,087  5,320  6,261 432.49%

2012  192,542  149,076  43,466  7,945  6,181 307.70%

2013  193,400  159,027  34,373  9,060  5,885 230.00%

2014  193,701  197,634  (3,933)  8,695  7,190 -24.76%

2015  207,745  147,653  60,092  8,950  8,715 340.18%

2016  204,224  146,351  57,873  9,340  8,347 327.21%

2017  204,287  158,446  45,841  11,290  9,825 217.10%

2018  213,873  148,636  65,237  12,000  11,250 280.59%

2019  230,980  155,635  75,345  12,475  10,778 324.02%

Water Revenue Bonds

Fiscal Year
Ended

June 30
Water

Revenues*

Less
Operating

Expenses**

Net
Available
Revenues

Debt Service ***

Principal Interest Coverage

2010  43,788  28,667  15,121  2,195  2,780 303.94%

2011  47,353  31,480  15,873  2,300  3,518 272.83%

2012  54,777  36,413  18,364  2,390  4,340 272.87%

2013  58,839  37,699  21,140  2,985  4,188 294.72%

2014  61,772  62,529  (757)  3,070  4,045 -10.64%

2015  58,039  38,810  19,229  3,185  3,915 270.83%

2016  51,538  35,500  16,038  3,305  3,781 226.33%

2017  58,551  42,113  16,438  4,430  3,625 204.07%

2018  62,819  43,801  19,018  3,525  3,456 272.43%

2019  62,270  45,321  16,949  3,695  3,287 242.75%

* Total operating revenues including investment earnings

** Total operating expenses exclusive of depreciation and interest expenses

*** Requirements are reported on a cash basis, excluding premiums

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the basic fi nancial statements.
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